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Cover Page Commentary

Capacitors

Aluminum
electrolytic
capacitors

Our capacitor and NICHICON
Energy Control System
Technology (NECST) products are
employed in a host of fields,
including the automotive, home
appliances and information and
communications equipment, and
environment sectors. This image
expresses our aim of further
technological advancement and
contribution to human lives and
society, as well as global
environmental protection.
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Film capacitors

Profile

Aiming at a creation business toward Koto-Zukuri
(the creation of customer expectations)
NICHICON got its start in 1950, manufacturing capacitors in
Kusatsu, Shiga Prefecture, for the power reception and

cultivating as our next pillar of expansion.
Overseas, we are expanding our overseas sales network in

transformation facilities markets. Next, we rapidly expanded our

such emerging markets as China and India, bolstering our

fields of business, moving into capacitors for electric apparatus,

manufacturing and technological development capabilities,

home electronics and information and communications

promoting local procurement and working to lower cost of sales

equipment, and electronic controls. We currently develop,

by boosting productivity.

manufacture and sell the capacitors and circuit products that are

Based on the concept of “Top Notch Management” with

essential to a host of electrical and electronic equipment. We

first-class performance in every aspect of our business,

concentrate specifically on strengthening our operations in three

including quality, cost, delivery, service and technology, we

areas: aluminum electrolytic capacitors, film capacitors and

have created a management structure that integrates all

circuit products/applied systems.

operations from development through sales into two business

In recent years, we have leveraged the proprietary

headquarters: the Capacitor Business Headquarters and the

technologies we have cultivated since our founding for the

NECST Business Headquarters. We are working to augment our

efficient management of electricity. As a result, we have

share of such key markets as power electronics, automotive and

commercialized such products as the “Home Power Station,” a

the environment. Furthermore, we aim to make the switch from

household energy storage system; the “EVPower Station,” the

being a manufacturing business to being a creation business by

world’s first Vehicle-to-Home (V2H) system; and the “EV

shifting our perspective from manufacturing to Koto-Zukuri

Quick Charger,” which will be essential to the spread of electric

(the creation of customer expectations), satisfying and

vehicles. We are concentrating on entering the energy and

impressing our customers by proposing products that deliver

environment field, an important growth market that we are

value exceeding their expectations.

NECST products

Home Power
Station

EVPower Station

Smart
Agricultural
Network System

EV Quick Charger
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Top Commitment

Based on the concept of “Top Notch Management,”
we are transforming ourselves into a “creation business”
capable of rapidly ascertaining customers’ needs.
We wish to offer everyone our sincerest gratitude for their unwavering and exceptional support.
The following explains our performance in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, as well as the measures
in which we are currently engaged and our management policies going forward.

Representative Director and President

Shigeo Yoshida
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Representative Director and Chairman

Ippei Takeda

Performance in the Year Ended March 31, 2015

Robust Performance in Products for
Automotive Equipment and Inverter Devices
In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, the Japanese
economy was affected by a backlash in demand
compared with the rush preceding the consumption tax
hike, leading to lackluster personal consumption, but
overall the economy staged a modest recovery. Overseas
economic performance was broadly robust. The U.S.
economy experienced higher personal consumption
stemming from an improved employment situation, and
corporate performance recovered. In Europe, however,
the sense of economic stagnation grew more
pronounced. Growth continued to level off in China,
while performance sagged in Russia and other
resource-producing countries.
In this environment, the Group focused on leveraging
its core capacitor, circuit and inverter technologies in
the digital and power electronics field. We also
undertook initiatives aimed at expanding all our
businesses in fields where high levels of growth are
anticipated, such as the environment-related and

medical sectors, thereby establishing new pillars of
operation.
As a result, during the year net sales increased 2.5%,
to ¥107,294 million, while operating income declined
8.0%, to ¥3,877 million, and net income dropped
29.1%, to ¥2,258 million.
Among the product segments, demand for products
used in automotive electronics and inverter equipment
was robust, boosting sales. However, sluggish demand
for our “Home Power Station” household energy storage
system and a downturn in function modules had a
negative effect on sales. In capacitors for electric
apparatus and power utilities & capacitor applied
systems and equipment, sales increased for power
capacitors and equipment and applied systems, leading
to higher net sales.
Overseas, in the Asian market we enjoyed favorable
orders for products used in inverter equipment, and
sales of products for automotive equipment increased in
Europe. As a result, overseas sales amounted to ¥66,040
million, accounting for 61.6% of net sales. We are
continuing to chart a course toward expanding our
overseas sales.

Top Notch Management and Actual Measures

Top Notch Management

First-class performance in every aspect of our business,
including quality, cost, delivery, service and technology
Capacitor Business Headquarters
Aluminum electrolytic
capacitors

Film capacitors

NECST Business Headquarters
Circuit products/applied systems

Seven Business Groups
Aluminum Electrolytic Capacitors / Plastic Film Capacitors / Capacitor-Applied Systems & Equipment
Dispersed Power Source / Automotive Related Products / Power Storage Systems / Switching Power Supplies

Household electrical
appliances
Industrial inverters

Automotive
Railway-car

Energy
Environment
Medical

Information &
communications
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Top Commitment

Making the Switch from Being a
Manufacturing Business to Being a
“Creation Business” by Shifting Our
Perspective from Manufacturing to
Koto-Zukuri
(the Creation of Customer Expectations)
The NICHICON Group’s management policy espouses
“Top Notch Management,” meaning that we aim to
achieve first-class performance in every aspect of our
business, including quality, cost, delivery, service and
technology. To realize this goal, in November 2013 we
reorganized our structure into two business headquarters
structure, the Capacitor Business Headquarters and the
NECST Business Headquarters, and established seven
business groups.
In accordance with the management vision outlined in our
medium-term management policy, in the year ended March
31, 2015, we concentrated on the digital and power
electronics field as a pillar of business leveraging our core
technologies in such areas as capacitors, circuits and
inverters. We simultaneously focused our energies on
developing new pillars of business in fields slated for high
levels of future growth, including ecology, electric and hybrid
vehicles, and inverter-related products. In this manner, we
worked to achieve growth in each business group.
In the capacitor business, we undertook proactive,
market-specific initiatives in four categories: energy,
environment & medical equipment, automotive &
railway-car related appliances, household electrical
appliances & industrial inverters and information &
communications equipment. In the automotive field, the
growing use of electronics led to increased adoption of
our chip aluminum electrolytic capacitors and lead type
aluminum electrolytic capacitors. We also introduced

5
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new products in response to needs in the areas of LED
lighting and power supply applications.
In the NECST business, we entered the market for
new separate-type household energy storage systems. We
also increased the number of vehicle types that can
connect to our V2H system, the “EVPower Station,”
adding compatibility for the “MIRAI” fuel cell vehicle
and others. We also introduced new products to meet
customer needs in such areas as emergency power
supplies for disaster preparedness and a lithium-ion
power storage system for public and industrial use to
shift peak electricity demand.
Based on the concept of making the switch from being
a manufacturing business to being a “creation business”
by shifting our perspective from manufacturing to
Koto-Zukuri (the creation of customer expectations), we
are working to rapidly ascertain customer needs and
encourage active customer involvement from the product
development stage through proposal-driven sales that
create new value by making use of the Group’s new
products and technologies.
As part of our efforts to create structures to support
our future growth trajectory, in January 2014 we opened
a Development Center at NECST Business
Headquarters, followed by a Technology Center at
Capacitor Business Headquarters in April 2015. These
centers will buttress our research structure and are aimed
at accelerating new product development and reinforcing
our development of core technologies. We have put in
place personnel responsible for sales at each business
headquarters in the goal of thoroughly integrating all
processes from development to design, manufacturing
and sales, aiming to increase our speed of operations.
In July 2015, we strengthened our business structure
through the transfer of Yutaka Electric Mfg. Co., Ltd.,
which develops, manufactures and sells power supply
devices and electronic components.
Our Policy from April 2015

Increasing our Percentage of Sales from
Products for Automotive Equipment
In 2013, we introduced the concept of “Top Notch
Management”, and spent the ensuing two years in efforts
to reinforce our R&D and sales structures. One aspect of
these activities was the automotive business, which our
medium-term management policy defines as a core
business. In this area, we are concentrating on

automotive capacitors for high-voltage, high-capacitance
power electronics and quick-chargers and working to
expand sales in locations where the market for
automotive electrical systems is expected to expand,
including Japan, Europe, the United States and China.
We are boosting sales of products for the automotive
business as a percentage of total sales. In non-automotive
areas, we are endeavoring to increase sales of our “Home
Power Station” household energy storage system,
dispersed power source system and other
environment-related equipment, as well as medical
equipment, such as accelerator power supplies for
corpuscular ray cancer treatment. Through these
initiatives, we intend to ensure the simultaneous
medium-term growth of our two pillars of business,
NECST and capacitors.
Achieving these goals will require strong human
resources. In addition to new graduates and mid-career
personnel, we recruit exchange students who wish to
work in Japan, currently employing them in roles at
headquarters and management positions in their home
countries. In addition, we invite personnel employed at
our Development Center in Wuxi, China, to study in
Japan as part of human resource exchanges. Recognizing
that human resource growth is the key to future
corporate development, we are focusing on human
resource cultivation as we strive to exhibit our
superiority in increasingly competitive global markets.
As a result of these efforts, in the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2016, we forecast net sales of ¥122,000
million and net income of ¥3,600 million.
Message to Our Stakeholders

Ensuring Stable Energy Supplies and
Protecting the Global Environment
August 2015 marks the 65th anniversary of the
Company’s founding. On behalf of the Company, I
would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude for the support of all our stakeholders. Since
the time of our establishment, we have honed proprietary
technologies to manage electricity efficiently in our
mainstay field of capacitors, thereby contributing to
human life and industry development. Now we are
leveraging these technologies to enter new markets,
including those related to energy, the environment and
medical equipment. We are also striving to cultivate a
pillar of future growth in the areas of stable energy

supply and the global environment. Taking advantage of
the creativity for which our home city of Kyoto is
renowned, we are forging tie-ups with universities and
other companies in the area to cultivate proprietary
technologies and create new value. Our mission
statement declares that “We dedicate ourselves to
creating valued products that will contribute to a brighter
future for society.” In line with this focus, we will
harness the energy of all our employees as we
concentrate on current initiatives.
Meanwhile, we are enhancing our systems for
ensuring thorough compliance, operational optimization
and trustworthy financial reporting. By putting in place
and augmenting our internal controls, we endeavor to
enhance corporate value.
Our Group recognizes the importance of returning
profits to shareholders. We will strive to steadily increase
our dividends by enhancing our corporate value,
reinforcing our business foundation and continuing to
secure profits. Under this policy, we set our dividend for
the year ended March 31, 2015, at ¥18 per share. We are
planning a dividend of ¥20 per share for the fiscal year
ending March 31, 2016, including a commemorative
dividend to mark our 65th anniversary of establishment.
Retained earnings will be allocated to enhancing our
future corporate value, including investment in R&D for
expanding our core businesses.
We ask our stakeholders, including our shareholders
and investors, for their ongoing support.
NICHICON CORPORATION
Representative Director
and Chairman

Ippei Takeda

June 26, 2015
Representative Director
and President

Shigeo Yoshida
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Performance

Financial Information
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

2015/3

2014/3

2013/3

2012/3

2011/3

2015/3

¥ 107,294

¥ 104,690

¥ 90,813

¥ 107,659

¥ 105,914

$ 892,112

Operating income

3,877

4,216

(3,360)

2,135

5,062

32,236

Income before income taxes and minority interest

4,381

4,336

(4,718)

2,693

3,926

36,426

Net income

2,258

3,183

(6,237)

1,157

2,660

18,775

Capital expenditures

2,401

2,315

5,353

15,394

6,584

19,966

Depreciation and amortization

4,279

5,137

7,554

9,151

7,657

35,580

Total assets

141,252

135,050

125,742

139,150

130,790

1,174,459

Shareholders’ equity

103,298

96,406

88,348

92,850

92,980

858,885

¥ 31.65

¥ 44.56

¥ 16.20

¥ 37.24

0.26

18.00

16.00

15.00

15.00

14.00

0.15

1,473.12

1,349.49

1,236.67

1,299.69

1,301.49

12.25

For the year
Net sales

At year-end

Per share of common stock
(Units: JPY or US$)
Net income
Cash dividends
Shareholders’ equity
Shareholders’ equity ratio (%)
Ratio of net income to shareholders’ equity

Unit: JPY

Unit: US$

¥(87.30)

73.1%

71.4%

70.3%

66.7%

71.1%

2.3

3.4

(6.9)

1.2

2.8

Notes: 1. Amounts less than 1 million yen have been rounded off.
2. The U.S. dollar amounts are provided solely for convenience at the rate of ¥120.27 to U.S. $1, the approximate exchange rate at March 31, 2015.
3. Certain reclassifications of previously reported amounts have been made to conform with current classifications.

Non-financial Information
2015/3

2014/3

2013/3

2012/3

2011/3

No. of employees

4,809

5,792

6,026

6,901

8,219

Frequency rate

0.221

0.224

0.459

0.551

0.371

Severity rate

0.000

0.007

0.020

0.021

0.008

Fuel oil consumption (kl)

1,072

4,796

12,596

19,062

19,837

LPG consumption (kg)

213,399

237,944

205,055

285,333

277,182

Electricity consumption (kWh 1,000’s)

557,045

518,589

531,117

959,141

1,000,662

14

16

15

15

15

694

701

1,064

953

934

262,908

248,593

259,997

455,363

474,878

533

542

821

783

792

At year-end

Water consumption (t 10,000’s)
Underground water consumption (t 10,000’s)
CO2 emissions (t-CO2)
Waste water emissions (t 10,000’s)
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■ Net Sales

■ Operating Income

■ Net Income

(million yen)

(million yen)

(million yen)

120,000

6,000

105,914 107,659

104,690 107,294
90,813

90,000

3,000

60,000

0

30,000

−3,000

5,000

5,062

4,216
2,135

3,183

2,660

3,877

1,157

2,258

0

−5,000

−6,237

−3,360
0

−6,000
2011/3

2012/3

2013/3

2014/3

−10,000

2015/3

2011/3

2012/3

2013/3

2014/3

2015/3

2011/3

2012/3

2013/3

■ Net Income per Share

■ Total Assets

■ Shareholders’ Equity

(yen)

(million yen)

(million yen)

150,000

80.00

44.56

40.00 37.24

16.20

130,790
31.65

139,150
125,742

120,000

0

90,000

−40.00

60,000

−80.00

30,000

135,050

141,252

2014/3

2015/3

120,000

90,000

92,980 92,850 88,348 96,406

103,298

60,000

87.30

−120.00
2011/3

2012/3

2013/3

0

0
2014/3

2015/3

■ No. of Employees
10,000
8,000

30,000

2011/3

2012/3

2013/3

2014/3

2015/3

6,026

6,000

2013/3

■ Electricity Consumption

■ Water Consumption
(t 10,000’s)

2014/3

959,141

15

15

15

15

2011/3

2012/3

2013/3

16
14

800,000

5,792
4,809

2015/3

20

1,000,000 1,000,662

6,901

2012/3

(kWh 1,000’s)
1,200,000

8,219

2011/3

600,000

531,117 518,589 557,045

4,000

10

400,000
5

2,000

200,000

0

0
2011/3

2012/3

2013/3

2014/3

2015/3

0
2011/3

2012/3

2013/3

2014/3

2015/3

2014/3

■ Underground Water Consumption

■ CO2 Emissions

■ Waste Water Emissions

(t 10,000’s)

(t-CO2)

(t 10,000’s)

500,000

1,200
1,000

1,064
934

953

474,878

1,000

455,363
800

400,000

800

701

694

300,000

259,997 248,593 262,908

600
400
200
0
2012/3

2013/3

2014/3

2015/3

792

783

821

600

200,000

400

100,000

200

542

533

2014/3

2015/3

0

0
2011/3

2015/3

2011/3

2012/3

2013/3

2014/3

2015/3

2011/3

2012/3

2013/3
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Special Feature

We are steadily channeling cutting-edge technologies
cultivated through national projects and
industry-academia collaboration into environmental
and other fields.
Leading the Industry with Advanced Technologies
State-of-the-Art Equipment Employing NICHICON’s
Technologies Central to Creating New Businesses

Mission
Statement
We dedicate ourselves to
creating valued products that
will contribute to a brighter
future for society. We strive to
attain a better global
environment, to live up to our
ethical and social
responsibilities and to
diligently work to exceed the
expectations of our customers,
shareholders and employees.
With heart and soul we aim to
maximize our corporate
value by the way of “ko-do”
(Think and Work).

As a manufacturer of electronic components with a focus on capacitors, we have
amassed proprietary technologies in the efficient management of electricity. Through
national projects, we are honing our various technologies and applying them in the
development of environment- and energy-related products.

High-voltage, high-current
control technologies

Integrated Report 2015

We have installed a power storage
type solar generating system on the
roof of our headquarters building.

X-ray Free Electron Laser
(X-FEL) Facility, SACLA

High-capacitance inverter
technologies

Direct-current stabilization
technologies

High-precision digital
control technologies

Since the Great East Japan Earthquake, Japanese demand for
energy generation, storage and saving has increased. Furthermore,
reducing greenhouse gas emissions has grown into a major issue
on a global scale. To address such issues, we are applying the
circuit technology we have accumulated through the development
and manufacture of capacitors to create products that are friendly
to the global environment. We have established the NECST
Project, which we upgraded in 2013 to the NECST Business
Headquarters, to a pillar of business alongside the Capacitor
Business Headquarters. We are working to develop
environmentally friendly products that provide stable energy
supplies and protect the environment.

9

Power Storage Type Solar
Generating System

SACLA (SPring-8 Angstrom
Compact Free Electron Laser),
certified as a core national
technology, employs NICHICON
products.

Wind Power Stabilizing
Power Storage System
(NEDO Verification Business)
This power storage system absorbs
power fluctuations in wind-power
generation.

Proton Beam Therapy
Instrument
(Source: Nagoya Proton Beam
Therapy Center)
This new cancer treatment method
uses NICHICON technologies.

Japan Proton Accelerator
Research Complex (J-PARC)
Our electromagnetic power supplies
are used to bend powerful proton
beams and bundle them together.

NECST Business
Our Lineup of Products Contributing to Energy Generation,
Storage and Saving
We established the NECST Project (now the NECST Business Headquarters) in March 2010. Under the
themes of expanding renewable energy, making the power grid more dispersed and intelligent, and
promoting the proliferation of EVs and other eco-cars, to help protect the environment we have been
working toward the development and sale of proprietary new products that contribute to energy
generation, storage and saving.

Home Power Station
A system that links solar generation and storage
systems
This system is useful in storing energy from solar generation and
nighttime electricity, when rates are lower. It can also be used as a
backup system during power outages and emergencies. As a leader in
household energy storage systems, NICHICON offers a
high-capacitance model, for which market demand is strong, and is
developing various new models.

EVPower Station
For storing and supplying power to the
large-scale storage batteries on EVs
Our “EVPower Station” is the world’s first Vehicle-to-Home (V2H)
system, designed to connect customers’ EVs with their residences. This
system uses relatively inexpensive nighttime electricity to charge the EV
and can be used to supply household power during the daytime,
effecting a peak shift in electricity demand. Since our 2012 development
of a system compatible with the Nissan Leaf, we have expanded
compatibility to include other vehicle models. In 2014, we extended
connectability to the MIRAI, Toyota Motor’s fuel cell vehicle.

EV Quick Chargers
Development of space-saving models with
accounting systems installed
Increasing the number of charging locations is a key infrastructure
requirement for encouraging the proliferation of environmentally
friendly EVs. We have applied our miniaturization and weight
reduction technologies to develop the world’s most compact and
lightweight EV quick chargers. We have extended our lineup to
include models that employ dedicated cards to authenticate users and
perform credit card settlements. We will continue contributing to the
proliferation of EVs going forward.

Dispersed Power Source
Developing emergency power systems for public
facilities
Whereas electric utilities supply large volumes of concentrated
electricity, there has been a growing focus on locating dispersed power
source in areas closer to points of consumption. NICHICON has
developed a solar generating system with a power storage function, and
power storage system with lithium batteries to absorb the
fluctuations in wind-power generation. We have introduced this
system, which also serves as an emergency power source for public
facilities, as a lithium-ion power storage system for public and
industrial use.

Integrated Report 2015
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Review by Product Sector

The NICHICON Group is composed of three production departments: capacitors for electronics and circuit
products, capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities & capacitor applied systems and equipment.
These departments are each rolling out proactive product development strategies in four markets: energy,
environment & medical equipment, automotive & railway-car related appliances, household electrical
appliances and industrial inverters, and information and communications equipment.

Sales Breakdown by Product Sector in
Business Year Ended March 31, 2015

Sales by Product Sector
(million yen)
120,000

Capacitors for
electronics
67.9%
Circuit
products
19.8%
Capacitors for
electric apparatus
and power utilities
& capacitor applied
systems and equipment
12.3%

105,914
100,000

104,690

90,813

11,443

80,000

12,488

107,294
21,273

22,578
19,940

13,207

13,049

2015/3

107,294
(million yen)

Capacitors for Electronics
Aluminum electrolytic
capacitors
Plastic film capacitors
Positive thermistors

Capacitors for electronics account for two-thirds of the
NICHICON Group’s business operations, constituting
the majority of consolidated net sales. We develop and
sell high-quality, highly functional products, including
aluminum electrolytic capacitors, in which we command
a leading global market share; plastic film capacitors
with exceptional high-frequency characteristics; and
positive thermistors, which utilize changes in resistance
values caused by temperature fluctuation.
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18,198

16,348

10,584

60,000

40,000

78,123

76,973
60,289

72,814

69,063

20,000

0

2011/3
Capacitors for electronics

11

107,659

2012/3

2013/3

2014/3

Capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities &
capacitor applied systems and equipment

2015/3

(FY)

Circuit products

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2015
In the year ended March 31, 2015, sales of capacitors for
electronics came to ¥72,814 million, up 5.4% year on year and
accounting for 67.9% of consolidated net sales. Robust demand
for products for automotive equipment and inverter equipment
was behind this increase.
The major products that we developed during the fiscal year
under review are as follows.
Mainly for automotive use, we added to the CZ series lineup
of chip type aluminum electrolytic capacitors with a
low-temperature ESR specification with high-capacitance φ
12.5–18mm products. We also augmented specifications on our
LD series of extra long-life miniature type aluminum
electrolytic capacitors, mainly used in LED lighting power
supplies and general power supply adapters, with 10–100V
products guaranteed to 10,000 hours at 105°C. Furthermore, we
added products with a long-life 500V rating to our LT and LV
series of chip type aluminum electrolytic capacitors for mid- to
high-voltage use.

Circuit Products

Going Forward
We will move forward with proposal-based development and
sales activities aimed at anticipating customers’ needs in four key
markets: energy, environment & medical equipment, automotive
& railway-car related appliances, household electrical appliances
and industrial inverters, and information and communications
equipment. In particular, we will work to expand sales in
locations where the market for automotive electrical systems is
expected to expand, including Japan, Europe, the United States
and China. We will also step up technological developments
surrounding core materials, such as aluminum electrolytic foil,
electrolytes and films, concentrated at the new Technology
Center we have established within Capacitor Business
Headquarters. In addition, we intend to extend our lineup of
power electronics for industrial and other equipment.

CZ series low-temperature ESR
specification chip type
aluminum electrolytic capacitors

Environment-related products
Household energy storage
system
“Home Power Station”
Vehicle-to-Home (V2H) system
“EVPower Station”
Switching power supplies
Function modules

This department focuses on the environmental products
of the NICHICON Energy Control System Technology
(NECST) Business Headquarters, which is driving new
business in energy generation/energy storage/energy
saving, etc. It is also focusing on growing the business
of switching power supplies, which is indispensable to
all electronic equipment, as well as function modules on
which various electronic components such as
capacitors and semiconductor chips are mounted. In
environmental products, we are proceeding with the
development and sale of products essential to the
proliferation of EVs, such as our “Home Power Station”
household energy storage system and the “EVPower
Station,” a Vehicle-to-Home (V2H) system.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2015

Extra long-life miniature type
aluminum electrolytic capacitors
LD Series

LT and LV series of chip type
aluminum electrolytic capacitors
for mid- to high-voltage use
500V rated products

Sales of “circuit products” for the fiscal year under review
amounted to ¥21,273 million, a decrease of 5.8% from the
previous year, accounting for 19.8% of total consolidated net
sales. The main reason for the decline was lackluster
second-half sales, as a subsidy supporting the introduction of
household energy storage system ended during the first half of
the year.
During the year ended March 31, 2015, we enabled
connectivity between our “EVPower Station” and the MIRAI,
Toyota Motor’s fuel-cell vehicle, equipping it for use as an
emergency power source in times of disaster.
Other models that can be connected to this system include
the Nissan Leaf and several Mitsubishi Motors models: the
i-MiEV, MINICAB-MiEV VAN, MINICAB-MiEV TRUCK
and the Outlander PHEV, a plug-in hybrid.
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Review by Product Sector

Going Forward
With electric utilities reducing the rates they pay for solar
power, we anticipate an increase in demand for residential
storage of electricity produced from solar power generation
systems. As a leader in household energy storage systems,
NICHICON is introducing new models to meet market needs,
including a high-capacitance 12 kWh system.
As the NICHICON Group’s “EVPower Station” applies for a
government subsidy for promoting the expansion of
next-generation automobile charging infrastructure, these sales
are expected to continue growing.

Capacitors for Electric Apparatus
and Power Utilities & Capacitor
Applied Systems and Equipment
Film capacitors
Capacitor applied systems and equipment
EV Quick Charger
Dispersed power source
Accelerator power supplies at medical facilities
Accelerator power supplies for academic study
Power outage compensator / momentary voltage sag compensator

can be located outdoors. This model greatly increases the
convenience of delivery, installation, operation and
maintenance, as well as realizing increases in functionality.
In direct current dry film capacitors, we developed the EJ
series, which is 40% smaller than our previous model and is of
a resin fully molded type (caseless structure) capable of
withstanding high and low temperatures.
Using the precision control technology we cultivated
through beam accelerator and beam splitting power sources in
the X-ray Free Electron Laser (XFEL) facility, SACLA
(SPring-8 Angstrom Compact Free Electron Laser), we
developed a power supply for medical instruments for
corpuscular ray treatment. Fifteen of these power supplies have
already been delivered to 10 facilities in Japan, including cancer
treatment centers, universities and facilities under construction,
as well as to two facilities in the United States.
During the year, we received the Japan Electric Construction
Association Encouragement Award at JECA FAIR 2014 for our
lithium-ion battery type voltage sag compensator for power
outages. This product protects against data loss due to sudden
power sags or outages.

EJ series direct current dry film capacitors

Lithium-ion battery type voltage sag
compensator

This department develops and markets products
centered on industrial power reception/transformation
facilities, including smoothing capacitors for railway
cars and hybrid vehicles and capacitor applied systems.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2015
Sales of capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities &
capacitor applied systems and equipment amounted to ¥13,207
million, an increase of 1.2% from the previous year, accounting
for 12.3% of total consolidated net sales. This rise was mainly
attributable to higher sales of power capacitors and systems and
applied equipment.
During the year ended March 31, 2015, we responded to
market needs by developing a new lithium-ion power storage
system for public and industrial use that has a
compartmentalized structure, employs a Scott transformer and

13
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Going Forward
We expect demand for our compact-type EV Quick Charger to
grow, thanks in part to an increased government subsidy
offsetting the cost of purchasing and installing the systems.
Leveraging the strength of our broad-ranging lineup of
space-saving 10–50 kW models with accounting systems
installed, we anticipate a major increase in unit sales.
In the infrastructure business, we will emphasize
development of such products as voltage sag compensators for
data centers.

Global Operations
We are consolidating our production system and strengthening
our sales structures in Europe, Americas and Asia.
1 NICHICON (AMERICA) CORPORATION
2 NICHICON (AUSTRIA) GmbH
3 NICHICON (AUSTRIA) GmbH U.K.OFFICE

3

4 NICHICON (HONG KONG) LTD.

2

5 NICHICON (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

1

6 NICHICON (THAILAND) CO., LTD.
7

NICHICON (TAIWAN) CO., LTD.
14

8 NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING

(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.

13

9 NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING

(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.

15

DALIAN REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

14 NICHICON ELECTRONICS (INDIA)

(SHENZHEN) CO., LTD.

15 NICHICON (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD.

11 NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING

(WUXI) CO., LTD.

13 NICHICON ELECTRONICS (INDIA) PVT. LTD.

(SUQIAN) CO., LTD.

Net Sales by Location
107,659
90,813

40,000
20,000

104,690

45,116

49,595

44,467

Asia 47.7%

107,294

Greater China Region and ASEAN

47,737

51,117

5,455
5,530

6,793
7,130

6,908
8,015

39,681

43,030

41,254

40,147

6,223
6,723

6,037
5,882

2015/3

107,294
(million yen)

0

2011/3
Japan

Europe / Others

2012/3
Americas

TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD., and its Dalian
representative office covering Eastern and Northern China.
We are taking a proactive approach toward growing sales in
China by holding exhibitions, etc. We also have NICHICON
(HONG KONG) LTD., NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING
(SHENZHEN) CO., LTD., and NICHICON (TAIWAN) CO.,
LTD., covering Hong Kong, southern China and Taiwan. In inland
China, we opened two branches of NICHICON ELECTRONICS
TRADING (SHENZEN) CO., LTD., in Chongqing and Chengdu.
As demand growth in China is expected to be particularly
pronounced for automotive and automotive electrical products, we
are reinforcing sales efforts targeting local manufacturers of
electrical components. To augment our marketing efforts in China,
we are updating our Chinese-language website, producing Chinese
product catalogs and strengthening sales capabilities tailored to
local selling methods. Meanwhile, we have NICHICON
(MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD., NICHICON (SINGAPORE) PTE.
LTD., and NICHICON (THAILAND) CO., LTD. covering the
entire ASEAN region. Furthermore, we established NICHICON
ELECTRONICS (INDIA) PVT. LTD. in Bangalore, where
demand continues to grow. We also opened an office in Delhi in
August 2014 to provide better sales coverage for automotive and
industrial equipment companies in northern India.
We will continue striving to increase our overall earnings by
attracting new customers and increasing the market share of our
products through the promotion of products and services that are
attuned to economic trends and customer needs in countries
around the world.

Regional Sales Breakdown in Business
Year Ended March 31, 2015

(million yen)

49,526

7

18 NICHICON ELECTRONICS

During the year ended March 31, 2015, we enjoyed robust
demand in Asia for our inverter equipment, and sales of products
for the automotive field were favorable in the European and U.S.
markets. As a result, overseas sales expanded 7.1% year on year,
to ¥66,040 million. By region, sales amounted to ¥51,117 million
in Asia (up 7.1% year on year), ¥6,908 million in the Americas
(up 1.7%), and ¥8,015 million in Europe and other regions (up
12.4%). Overseas sales consequently increased 2.7 percentage
points as a percentage of consolidated net sales, to 61.6%.
In our overseas production system, we are working to augment
cost competitiveness by manufacturing in locations as close as
possible to the point of sale. After merging FPCAP ELECTRONICS
(SUZHOU) CO., LTD., a manufacturer of conductive polymer
aluminum solid electrolytic capacitors, with NICHICON
ELECTRONICS (SUQIAN) CO., LTD., our overseas production
structure comprises two bases in China and one in Malaysia.
We also established an R&D Center at NICHICON Wuxi,
which develops and designs switching power supplies and
adaptors for office equipment, digital appliances, home game
consoles, etc., at the standard global competition requires. We are
also evaluating local sourcing parts and raw materials and
planning and development for aluminum electrolytic capacitors.
With regard to sales, we are responding to customer needs and
undertaking business development and marketing through core
sales offices established worldwide. We have NICHICON
(AMERICA) CORP. covering the Americas and NICHICON
(AUSTRIA) GmbH and its UK office covering Europe. In Asia,
we have NICHICON WUXI, NICHICON ELECTRONICS

60,000

8

11

R&D CENTER CO., LTD.

(SHENZHEN) CO., LTD.
CHENGDU BRANCH

80,000

17
16

10
4

17 WUXI NICHICON ELECTRONICS

12 NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING

105,914

12

16 NICHICON ELECTRONICS

(SHENZHEN) CO., LTD.
CHONGQING BRANCH

100,000

18

5

PVT. LTD. DELHI OFFICE

10 NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING

120,000

9

6

2013/3
Asia

2014/3

2015/3

(FY)

Japan 38.4%
Europe / Others 7.5%
UK, France, and Austria

Americas 6.4%
United States, Brazil, and Mexico
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance and Internal Control System
Establishment of Internal Control System and
PDCA Cycle

Strengthening of Corporate Governance
NICHICON aims to establish organizational structures like the
ones below. We make corporate governance a priority in order
to secure efficient, sound and transparent business management,
as well as to continually enhance our corporate value and fulfill
our social responsibilities.
The Board of Directors is responsible for actions or decisions that
will greatly impact the NICHICON Group, while the directors and
operating officers execute specific business. The role of auditing the
Board of Directors is carried out by the Board of Corporate Auditors.
Corporate auditors perform legality audits of the execution of
duties by the directors and their operations, and track the
management status of business facilities and Group companies
through these audits, in addition to attending the Board of Directors
meetings and expressing their opinions. We have also established an
alternate corporate auditor system in preparation for situations where
the number of corporate auditors falls short of the statutory number.

Appointment of External Directors
NICHICON has three external directors and two external
corporate auditors. The external directors attend meetings of the
Board of Directors, monitor the business execution of each unit,
and perform oversight. The external corporate auditors attend
meetings of the Board of Directors and the Board of Corporate
Auditors, and also audit business operations and provide advice
by conducting internal audits of each executing unit. None of
the external directors or external corporate auditors has any
special interests in the Company.

NICHICON has established the CSR Promotion Committee to
build a platform for ensuring that its business conforms with the
Companies Act and the Ordinance for Enforcement of the
Companies Act. In addition, the Internal Control Promotion
Committee has been established to create an internal control
system as required by the Japanese Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act. Both committees are chaired by the president.
The CSR Promotion Committee has been established to
maintain the public’s trust and avoid or prevent risk that could
damage operations. The committee is composed of four
sub-committees, Compliance, Risk Management, Environmental
Management, and Information Security, which meet monthly to
confirm the status of progress in resolving each issue. The CSR
Office and the General Administration Division currently
function as secretariats for the committee.
As the head secretariat for the Internal Control Promotion
Committee, the Financial & Accounting Headquarters conducts
activities centered on the Financial & Accounting Division,
E.D.P. System Division and the Corporate Planning Division. In
practice, this means dividing the business of the Committee into
four discrete control categories—Company-wide Controls,
Financial Reporting Process Controls, General IT Controls, and
Work Process Controls—and building a platform for the spiraling
up of internal control.
In terms of internal audit functions, the Auditing & Legal
Affairs Office, which operates under the direction of the president,
gives specific guidance and advice based on audits of accounting,
business operations and systems, and internal control, which it
conducts periodically. In terms of guidance from internal auditing,
the division in question must formulate specific countermeasures
and aim for ongoing improvements using the PDCA cycle.

Corporate Governance Structural Diagram
Shareholders’ Meeting

Board of Directors

Board of Corporate Auditors

Directors
External Directors

Corporate Auditors
External Corporate Auditors

CSR Office

Chairman & CEO /
President & COO

Auditing & Legal
Affairs Office

CSR Promotion
Committee

Operating Division
Directors /
Operating Officers

Internal Control
Promotion Committee

Auditors Office

Business Facilities / Related Companies
Accounting Auditor
CSR Committee
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Internal Control
Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

CSR Management
Foundation of CSR — The NICHICON Group’s CSR Charter
The NICHICON Group enacted the NICHICON Group’s CSR
Charter in December 2005 as Corporate Social Responsibility
guidelines to be shared by all employees. While a company’s
actions can greatly affect society, it is important for a company to
engage in CSR in a proactive and serious manner in order to
maintain its existence.

Efforts are being made to familiarize all NICHICON Group
employees with the NICHICON Group’s CSR Charter, together
with the NICHICON Group’s Environmental Charter (enacted in
December 1997; revised in August 2015) as important action
guidelines.

CSR Promotion Structure
Board of Corporate Auditors

Board of Directors

Corporate Auditors
External Corporate Auditors

Directors
External Directors

Auditors Office

Auditing & Legal
Affairs Office

Chairman & CEO /
President & COO

CSR Office

Compliance
Compliance
Hotline
(Internal Reporting System)

CSR Promotion Committee
(President, Directors,
Operating Officers)
Risk Management

Business Facilities / Related Companies
Environmental Management
Compliance Hotline
(Business Facilities,
Related Companies)

CSR Committee
(Business Facilities,
Related Companies)

The NICHICON Group makes
a combined effort to promote
CSR activities
Hirotsugu Morishita

Operating Officer and General Manager
of the CSR Office

The NICHICON Group has promoted CSR as a group-wide
activity since the establishment of the CSR Office in June
2003.
To ensure CSR efforts are effective, NICHICON
established a CSR Promotion Committee consisting of
directors and operating officers organized into four
subcommittees focused on: compliance, risk management,
environmental management and information security. Each
subcommittee incorporates individual issues and problems
into annual business planning, confirms progress via monthly
reports from each facility and provides guidance.
Customer demands regarding the details and content of
CSR corporate activities have become more diverse in recent
years. NICHICON recognizes the importance of the
KEIDANREN (Japan Business Federation) Implementation
Guidance on Charter of Corporate Behavior (6th version), the
Japan Electronics and Information Technology Industries

Information Security

Association (JEITA) Supply Chain CSR Promotion Guidebook,
ISO 26000 (Guidance on social responsibility) and the
Electronic Industry Code of Conduct (EICC), which were
formulated primarily by US and European electronics
companies, and has been making an effort to incorporate
these concepts into all of its practices.
Having taken into consideration our experiences with
natural disaster and nuclear accidents, as well as our
examination of the impact such events have had on materials
and distribution in the supply chain, the entire Group is
engaged in ongoing improvements to its business continuity
plan (BCP) and the implementation and entrenchment of
business continuity management (BCM).
At the same time, NICHICON is engaging more deeply
with social and environmental issues through expanded sales
of environmental and energy-related products developed
using advanced energy generation and energy storage
technologies, dispersed power source and other elements to
realize Vehicle-to-Home (V2H) system and other household
energy storage system, smart grids through the fusion of
various technologies accumulated over the years.
NICHICON also recognizes the effective and efficient
internal controls necessary to ensure proper business
conduct are one part of CSR activity, and we will continue
with ongoing developments.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

Compliance
Dissemination of the NICHICON Group Code of
Conduct (revised)
In addition to the Company Credo, the Mission Statement
defines the direction and social responsibility on which every
employee should be focused. In October 2002, we established
the NICHICON Group Code of Conduct as guidance for
director and employee observance of laws and regulations and
to spread shared ethics and values.
Since the NICHICON Group Code of Conduct was
established in 2002, the Electronic Industry Code of Conduct
(EICC) was created and has been revised several times. In
November 2010, ISO 26000 (guidance on social responsibility)
was published. We have made adjustments concerning the
social responsibilities called for by the EICC and ISO 26000,
and in April 2013 we issued a revised version of the
NICHICON Group Code of Conduct (with Japanese /English /
Chinese / Malay editions) with extensive content enhancement.
After issuing the revised version of the code, we presented
each of our employees in Japan and overseas with a Code of
Conduct Understanding Checklist, to educate everyone at each
business facility and ensure that they are aware of and
understand the revised code. We then corrected these at the
head office and returned them to the business facilities so that
errors could be reviewed in order to improve understanding of
the code.

NICHICON Group Code of Conduct (revised) (published in four languages)

Education Aimed at Enhancing Compliance
Understanding
Compliance education is conducted regularly through general
assemblies, as well as position- and function-based training.
NICHICON makes an effort to foster awareness through the
regular distribution of an company bulletin, the Compliance
Newsletter, featuring educational case studies pertaining to
compliance provided by the CSR Promotion Committee
Compliance Subcommittee.

17
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Provision of Internal and External Consultation
Services (Internal Reporting System)
Compliance plays a significant role in the promotion of sound
corporate activities in conformity with all laws, ordinances,
internal rules, policies, codes of ethics, etc. NICHICON enacted
the Internal Reporting System Regulations as a mechanism for
enhancing compliance, from which it established the
Compliance Hotline (internal reporting system.)
Specifically, points of contact and means of consultation are
provided, and investigations are conducted when necessary,
should reports be received. Furthermore, we thoroughly protect
the personal information of the people who file reports so as to
prevent them from suffering any negative effects. As such,
efforts are being made for the prevention and early detection of
misconduct by utilizing the Compliance Hotline.

Status of Security Export Control
Security export control refers to the regulation of exports to
prevent weapons as well as consumer products and technologies
that can be diverted to military use from being shipped to
countries and terrorists known to develop weapons for mass
destruction, such as nuclear weapons and biological/chemical
weapons, in order to maintain the peace and security of the
international community. If restricted goods and/or technologies
are exported freely from Japan, Japan will only contribute to
harming the peace and security of the international community.
Thus, security export control has become an extremely
important issue, and various goods and technologies subject to
regulation are defined in government and ministerial decrees
under the Foreign Exchange and Foreign Trade Act.
The revised Foreign Exchange and Foreign Trade Act
enforced on April 1, 2010, provides new standards that must be
observed by exporters and similar businesses. The act specifically
requires that such businesses clarify who is responsible for export
control and supervise observation of related laws and regulations,
and that those engaged in exporting restricted goods/technologies
must exercise appropriate export control.
At NICHICON, even before the enforcement of the revised
Foreign Exchange and Foreign Trade Act, we appointed the
President & COO as the superintendent and the general manager of
the CSR Office as the general chief administrator for such activities,
and established internal regulations that stipulate export control roles
and procedures in the engineering divisions and sales divisions.
Also, on December 1, 2008, we were certified by Osaka
Customs as an Authorized Exporter in Authorized Economic
Operator (AEO) system, which is recognized for excellence in
compliance with respect to cargo security.
Moreover, we have launched an intranet site concerning security
export control to ensure that relevant employees are familiar with
related regulations and laws that are revised each year. With these
measures, we are proud to say that we had no incidents of export to
embargoed countries or terrorists in fiscal 2014.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

Risk Management
Ongoing Improvements to the Business Continuity
Plan (BCP) and Business Continuity Management
(BCM) Entrenchment Efforts
NICHICON makes an effort to take the appropriate responses
and countermeasures to prevent risk and minimize damage from
the perspective of employees, trading partners, customers,
regional communities and all our stakeholders with respect to
systems and countermeasures for risks with the potential to
significantly impact business, such as natural disasters and
accidents, management risks, and political, economic and social
risks. In an effort to maintain safe and stable corporate
management, operations and compliance are conducted
thoroughly in accordance with disaster and crime prevention
management regulations and risk management regulations.
NICHICON places importance on the establishment of
business continuity management for the quick resumption or
continuation of business in the event of damage from a natural
disaster or accident during the course of business activities.
The Great East Japan Earthquake, which occurred on March
11, 2011, provided NICHICON with an opportunity to complete
preparation of an outline for NICHICON Group business
continuity plan (BCP) formulation guidelines in 2012, and
business continuity regulations incorporated the already-drafted
business continuity plan and its management. Based on these
activities, NICHICON is establishing business continuity
Company-Wide Liaison System in the Event of
Materialization of Risks
Discoverer

management including continuous improvements via the PDCA
cycle to further enhance its business continuity plan.

Strengthening of Information Security
While convenience is increasing by leaps and bounds owing to
the progress in computer networking, there is a danger not only
of suffering business losses but also of losing social credibility
in the event of information leakage or falsification. In terms of
information security measures, the NICHICON Group
established the Information Security Basic Policy in February
2007. The Group is distributing the Information Security
Handbook and the NICHICON Employees’ Guide on “ko-do”
(Think & Work)* to thoroughly familiarize employees with the
rules and other matters concerning the handling of information
assets, in order to ensure recognition by all employees of the
importance of protecting information assets, as well as the
reflection thereof in their daily work.
At the same time, we believe that information assets can
generate new business if our employees are able to utilize them
strategically, although the information must be used correctly in
performing business operations.
The NICHICON Group will work to establish a foundation
for stable and sustainable growth by continuing to utilize
information assets safely and accurately.
has made up this word (in the Japanese original), which
* NICHICON
refers to thinking and working.

Head of Division/business facility

(In case of emergency)

Determine and Manage Important Risks
Head of Supervisory Division
Responsible for Risk at
Head Office

General Manager of General
Administration Division of
Head Office

General Manager of
Administration Headquarters

General Manager
of the CSR Office

Head of Related
Responsible
Divisions

CSR Promotion Committee

(If risk is material/significant)

Standing Corporate Auditor

Chairman/President

General Manager of Financial & Accounting Headquarters
General Manager of Corporate Planning Headquarters
General Manager of Quality Assurance Headquarters
General Manager of Capacitor Business Headquarters
General Manager of NECST Business Headquarters

(If risk is large in scale, etc.)
Establishment of Task Force

The Risk Management Subcommittee is part of the NICHICON
Group CSR Promotion Committee established at the Head
Office. The Risk Management Subcommittee receives monthly
activity reports from each facility, which it uses to confirm the
content of their activities and provide directions.
Beginning in fiscal 2013, the subcommittee also began using
Risk Management Effort Status Reports in addition to the
monthly activity reports, with each business facility responsible
for determining and managing important risks.
The actual progress of such efforts and their verification are
confirmed through the monthly reports, with guidance provided
for ongoing improvement.

NICHICON Group Information Management Framework
NICHICON Group CSR Charter

CSR Promotion Committee

Basic Policy on Information Security

Mission Statement

Personal Information Protection Policy

Related regulations,
etc.

NICHICON Group Code of Conduct

Working Regulations

Information Management Provisions
Personal Information
Management

Management of Confidential
Information of Other Companies

Information System
Management

Information System
Security Management

Operation Management for
System Administrators

PC and Network
Usage Control

Document Management

Information Security Handbook

Confidentiality Management

Industrial Property Rights
Management

Insider Trading
Prevention Management

Industrial Property Rights Control
Operation Management
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

CSR Activity Plan and Results
Activity Category

FY2014 Results

FY2015 Activity Plan

Related
page(s)

Compliance

•Execute compliance training

•Recited the Code of Conduct
(revised version) and conducted
training using case studies
•Conducted employee training
that uses the Compliance news
in the company bulletin

Risk Management

•Confirm and advise concerning
BCP execution status
•Determine and manage
important risks

•Conducted parallel development
of the business continuity plan
(BCP) and business continuity
management (BCM) at each
business facility (Ongoing)
•Determined and managed
important risks (Ongoing)

•Confirm and advise concerning
BCP execution status
•Determine and manage
important risks

18

Environmental Management

•Proceed with CO2 emissions
reduction measures at business
facilities and provide guidance
and support
•Promote environmental training
initiatives

•Promoted and provided guidance
•Proceed with CO2 emissions
and support for CO2 reduction
reduction measures at business
measures at business facilities
facilities and provide guidance
•Conducted environmental
and support
training to employees that uses
•Promote environmental training
the Environment Newsletter in
initiatives
the company bulletin

26

Information Security

•Continue with actual development •Promoted parallel development of
related measures by using
of information security measures
checklists at each business facility
using checklists

•Continue with actual development
of information security measures
using checklists

18

•Install high-function,
•Installed energy saving air
high-efficiency equipment to lead conditioning equipment,
to a low-carbon society
compressors, etc.
•1% lower per unit of sales
•3.2% higher per unit of sale
compared to FY2013
compared to FY2013

•Install high-function,
high-efficiency equipment to lead
to a low-carbon society
•1% lower per unit of sales
compared to FY2014

28

Contribution
to a
•CO2 reduction
low-carbon
society

Environmental Conservation Activity

19

FY2014 Activity Plan

•Expanding the
number of
•Increase the number of vehicle
Lowering
environmentally
models compatible with the
environmen- friendly products
EVPower Station
tal load
using core
•Grow the market for household
through
technology
energy storage system and
products
•Expanding the
dispersed power source system
and
products of
with solar generation and power
technology
generating,
storage function
storing, and saving
energy

•Execute compliance training

17

•Increased the environmental
performance of the EVPower
Station (enabled connection to
•Promote EV proliferation by
cogeneration using high-end
expanding the lineup of quick
functionality, augmented FCV
chargers
and PHV connectivity and
•Expand industrial power storage
increased energy-saving effects)
system product lineup, from
•Expanded the lineup of industrial
small to large, three-phase to
power storage systems (by
single-phase
increasing the lineup of compact •Increase the energy storage
10 kW models to medium-sized
effect by boosting the
20 kW models, contributed to
capacitance of household power
peak shift and energy storage)
storage system. Develop HEMS
•Household power storage system and demand response
(developed system equipped with capabilities
12 kW high-capacitance storage
battery)

•Maintain 99.8% recycling rate

•Maintained a recycling rate of
99.8%

•Examine trends in environmental
regulations in Japan and
overseas
•Respond systematically to rules
and regulations

•Acquired copies of latest
•Examine trends in environmental
versions of the rules, such as
regulations in Japan and
Revised RoHS, REACH-SVHC,
overseas
etc., and responded accordingly •Respond systematically to rules
within the internal control system and regulations

•Promotion of
beautification
Social
around facilities
contribution •Promotion of /
activities
participation in
regional civic
activities

•Promote beautification around
facilities
•Promote / participate in regional
civic activities

•Executed beautification around
facilities
•Hosted factory tours

•Thorough
enforcement of
non-use of
Green
Procurement prohibited
substances in
products

•Continue with green
•Continue with green
procurement surveys and
procurement surveys and
•Revised green procurement
maintain procurement of items
maintain procurement of items
guidelines for comprehensive
that comply with the green
that comply with the green
response to all laws
procurement guidelines
procurement guidelines
•Procured appropriate items
•Smoothly respond to chemical
•Smoothly respond to chemical
without delay in accordance with substance regulations of various
substance regulations of various
the internal control system
countries
countries
•Reduce substances of concern
•Reduce substances of concern
and seek to switch to substitutes
and seek to switch to substitutes

•Waste material
Lowering
reduction
environmental load
through
•Reduction of
business
environmental
activities
pollutants
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•Maintain 99.8% recycling rate

•Promote beautification around
facilities
•Promote / participate in regional
civic activities

29-31
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NICHICON and Society

Responsibility and Conduct toward Customers
Ensuring Product Safety/Providing Accurate
Information
The NICHICON Group has been developing and selling home-use
Vehicle-to-Home (V2H) system “EVPower Station” and
household energy storage system “Home Power Station” since
FY2012. In doing so, we emphasize the “consumer health &
safety preservation” aspects of ISO 26000. Our Quality Assurance
Headquarters confirms all product information up to and including
the details in the catalog listings to provide accurate data. We are
also in accordance with all aspects of the road vehicle functional
safety standard ISO 26262 (issued in November 2011).
List of Business Facilities with ISO 9001 2008 Series Certification
Names of business
facilities with certification
NICHICON CORPORATION HEAD OFFICE
TOKYO SALES OFFICE
NAGOYA SALES OFFICE
WEST JAPAN SALES OFFICE
POWER SUPPLY CENTER
NICHICON HI-TECH FOIL CORPORATION
NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION
NICHICON (KAMEOKA) CORPORATION
NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION
NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION
NICHICON (WAKASA) CORPORATION
TORISHIMA ELECTRIC WORKS LTD.
NIPPON LINIAX CO., LTD.
YUTAKA ELECTRIC MFG. CO., LTD.
NICHICON (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD.

NICHICON ELECTRONICS (WUXI) CO., LTD.
WUXI NICHICON ELECTRONICS R&D
CENTER CO., LTD.
NICHICON ELECTRONICS
(SUQIAN) CO., LTD.

Examination
Date of
and
registration registration
body

September
1991

November
2000
December
2005
May 1993
May 2006
June 2003
(renewed)
May 2015

JQA

ClassNK
MOODY
INTERNATIONAL
SGS
SIRIM

Registered
certification No.

JMI-0007

00-245
03237
JP93/001832
AR4005

WIT

15/03Q0572R00
(renewed)
15/15Q5702R41

June 2013

WIT

15/13Q0483R00

July 2013

WIT

15/13Q0538R00

Boosting the Reliability of Electronic Components
The NICHICON Group is a member of the Subcommittee on
Electronic Component Safety under the Electronic Components
Technology Standardization Strategy Committee of the Electronic
Components Board in the Japan Electronics and Information
Technology Industries Association (JEITA). Through this
participation, we work to maintain or improve component
reliability technologies and promote awareness of electronic
component knowledge. In addition, participating in the committee
enables us to obtain information quickly and accurately and
respond to issues related electronic component reliability, as well
as trends in product safety legislation and various safety standards.
Going forward, we will continue to cooperate with equipment
and component manufacturers on initiatives to enhance
component safety and reliability, ultimately aiming to meet
society’s safety requirements.

Responding Conscientiously at the Customer
Consultation Office
The NICHICON Group has established a Customer Consultation
Office at headquarters to consult with general consumers on the
B-to-C* products it develops and sells, such as the “EVPower
Station” V2H system and the “Home Power Station” household
energy storage system, and respond conscientiously to their inquiries.

* A contraction of “business to consumer”
Calls to the Customer Consultation Office in Fiscal 2014
800
600
400
200
0

List of Business Facilities with ISO/TS 16949 Certification
Names of business
facilities with certification

Date of
registration

April 2004
February 2013
January 2004
May 2004
NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION
May 2005
NICHICON (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD.
NICHICON ELECTRONICS (WUXI) CO., LTD. October 2012

NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION

Examination
and
registration
body
JQA
JQA
SIRIM
DEKRA

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

1

2

3 (Month)

Registered
certification No.
JQA-AU0031
JQA-AU0031-2
JQA-AU0013
JQA-AU0037
AR3641
No.161012148

My goal is to respond to
customers in a way that
exceeds their expectations.
Aiko Otani

Customer Consultation Office,
NECST Business Headquarters

Utilizing QM/QC Examination (Certification) to
Enhance Product Quality
The NICHICON Group has adopted the Japanese Standards
Association QM/QC* Examination (Certification) as an essential
part of our quality improvement measures. Adherence to this
standard assures annual Level 1, 2 and 3 certifications, which
contribute to improved quality.

The Customer Consultation Office’s mission is to feed
customer input back to various departments within the
Company. Every day I strive to respond to customers in
ways that exceed their expectations. When fielding
inquiries, I make it a point to respond promptly and
courteously, doing my best to meet their standards.
Going forward, I hope to develop even more of a sense
of closeness with customers and expand the circle of
“NICHICON fans.”

* QM/QC: Quality Management and Quality Control
Integrated Report 2015
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Responsibility and Conduct toward Shareholders and Investors
Securing a Sound Financial Base

General Shareholders’ Meeting

A solid financial base is indispensable for the implementation of
proactive business strategies aimed at further growth and the
NICHICON Group has maintained just that. The average ratio
of shareholders’ equity to total assets for listed corporations is
around 50%. As of March 31, 2015, we had achieved a figure of
73.1%, pointing to a high level of soundness.
Ratio of Shareholders’ Equity to Total Assets

(%)

2011/3

2012/3

2013/3

2014/3

2015/3

71.1

66.7

70.3

71.4

73.1

Basic Profit-Sharing Policy
The NICHICON Group recognizes that the return of profits to
its shareholders is an important issue and is making efforts to
steadily increase dividends by expanding corporate value,
strengthening its corporate foundations, and increasing profits.

The FY2014 Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders was
held on June 26, 2015, and attended by 92 shareholders.
During the shareholders’ meeting, we allow the exercise of
voting rights over the Internet, and we do our best to report
operating performance in an easy-to-understand manner, using
graphs and other visuals.
In addition to presenting product displays for the
much-discussed V2H system “EVPower Station” and household
energy storage system “Home Power Station”, we took steps to
increase the interest of those in attendance on the day of the
event. One such approach was to play background music
leading up to the start of the meeting on amplifiers and other
audio equipment that uses NICHICON capacitors.
We also held financial results briefings for institutional
investors at the end of the second quarter and the end of the year
in Tokyo.

Dividend per Share
(Yen)
20.00
15.00

14.00

15.00

15.00

2012/3

2013/3

16.00

18.00

20.00

10.00
5.00
0

2011/3

2014/3

2015/3

2016/3
(planning)

(FY)

Shareholder Composition
Our shareholder composition is shown below. Financial
institutions, and domestic and foreign companies account for
73% of the total.

Product display

Distribution According to Holder (Number of Shares)
Treasury shares

10.1%

Financial institutions

37.8%

Individuals, etc.

Financial institutions

43.0%

18.9%

Foreign
companies,
etc.

March
2015

20.2%

Other companies

13.6%
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8.4%

Individuals, etc.

17.2%

Foreign
companies,
etc.

Treasury shares
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March
2014

15.0%
Securities
firms

1.1%

Other companies

12.7%

Securities
firms

2.0%

Venue for the general shareholders’ meeting

NICHICON and Society

Communicating with Society / Social Contribution Activities
Hosting Factory Tours
In June 2014, NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION hosted a
tour for 54 students of the nearby Iwate Municipal Numakunai
Elementary School. In addition, 55 members of the Iwate-town
School Police Liaison Council* attended a factory tour in July as
part of a training workshop. Members of the tour learned how a
capacitor operates and had the opportunity to experience a Quick
Charger and test operation of an EV. In July 2014, students from
the Ohno Municipal Yomei Junior High School visited
NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION as part of a work
experience exercise. They measured the electrical characteristics
of capacitors and had the chance for a test ride in an EV. In May
2015, 29 students of the Okuetsumeisei High School in Fukui
Prefecture visited the Tomita Factory of NICHICON HI-TECH
FOIL CORPORATION. They studied the process of making
foil, a key capacitor material, and then visited the Site II Factory
of NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION.
In addition to
learning about
capacitors’ features,
these events helped the
students learn the
workings of some of
the items in their
surroundings.
Members of the Iwate-town School Police Liaison
Council NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION

These are designed to cultivate student health
* School police liaison councils: through
mutual cooperation between
members of school and the police.

Participating in Fairs Sponsored by Chambers of
Commerce/Making a Quick Charger Available to
Residents
On November 8 and 9, 2014, we took part in the Echizen
Industry and Food Fair (sponsored by the Ono Chamber of
Commerce & Industry) as part of a publicity exercise to foster
relationships with commercial interests in the city of Ono,
Fukui Prefecture. The fair included a dance by local nursery
school students, group exercises and other activities, as well as
various food stalls and displays, selling areas and
demonstrations. NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION
displayed products and used an electric heater and lighting
equipment to demonstrate the use of the “EVPower Station”
V2H system from an electric vehicle (EV) storage battery.
To encourage EV
proliferation, the
company typically
has a quick charger in
place in front of its
factory that people
from the community
can use free of
On display
charge.

Event to Introduce our V2H System
We took part in the Kyoto Energy Fair, held in Kyoto’s Miyako
Messe on September 6, 2014, displaying our “EVPower
Station” V2H system and the “Home Power Station” household
energy storage system. An actual EV was connected to the
“EVPower Station,” running LED lights and an electrical fan as
part of the demonstration.
Also, the Kyoto Gakusei Saiten (a student festival) was held
in Kyoto’s Okazaki
Park on October 13.
We took part in this
festival as well,
introducing the EV
Quick Charger as well
as our “EVPower
Station” and “Home
Demonstration using an electric vehicle
Power Station.”

Visiting Lectures at Elementary Schools
We held visiting lectures on February 6, 2015 at the Kyoto
Municipal Ohara Elementary School and on February 20 at the
Kyoto Municipal Kenryu Elementary School. During these
courses, students gained various types of experience, such as
learning how capacitors are constructed and using
hand-powered generators to store electricity to operate LED
lights. They also learned that capacitors are present in all
manner of electrical equipment and their role in reducing
environmental impact.
Questionnaires
after the classes
suggested that they
had helped many
students become
interested in
environmental issues
Taking part in a visiting lecture
and capacitors.

Promotion of Beautification around Facilities
Each of our business facilities engages in programs such as
cleanup campaigns, greening activities, and flower bed planting
annually. A total of 164 such events attended by 519 employees
were held in fiscal
2014 for the
beautification of areas
around our business
facilities.

Beautification activities
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Responsibility and Conduct toward Our Business Partners
Basic Purchasing Policies
The basic purchasing policies of the NICHICON Group are:
1) OPEN, 2) FAIR and 3) LAWFUL. In accordance with the
idea that “the NICHICON Group and its business partners are
partners in the creation of better products,” we seek to establish
a lasting partnership with business partners and achieve
co-existence and co-prosperity based on a fair and open
business relationship and mutual trust.

1
2
3

OPEN

In procuring materials, NICHICON promotes transactions
based on the principle of free competition on an open basis
regardless of the nationality or size of the company.

FAIR

Based on mutual trust with our business partners, we
conduct transactions that are equitable, open and fair.

LAWFUL

Materials are procured in compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations, as well as in consideration of the
global environment.

Sustainable CSR Procurement
At the NICHICON Group, our CSR philosophy, for which the
Electronic Industry Code of Conduct (EICC) and ISO 26000
form the guidelines, is not limited to the Group. We ask all of
our procurement partners to understand and fulfill their social
responsibilities.
The NICHICON Group sources materials from a variety of
countries and regions. We also require our business partners to
comply with the laws in each country in which they conduct
their operations and act in accordance with social norms. The
basic transactional agreement that we draw up with business
partners describes these expectations, as follows.
(1) We respect the human rights of our employees, provide safe
and sanitary working environments, do not engage in
discriminatory activities and strive to provide equal working
opportunities.
(2) We do not engage in forced labor, child labor or the illegal
employment of foreign nationals. We comply with the laws
of countries and regions in which we operate with respect to
working conditions, including employee compensation and
working hours.
In addition to these provisions, to ensure diversity we instill
awareness regarding our strict demand for the respect of human
rights, and we do not seek procurement from any business
partners who do not understand and practice these values.
Also, we have adopted a basic policy of non-use of conflict
minerals in light of the U.S. Dodd–Frank Act and the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) disclosure rules in accordance
with that act, and are working to improve supply chain
transparency by sharing data with suppliers and other measures.

23

Integrated Report 2015

Thorough Compliance Across
the Entire Value Chain
The NICHICON Group pursues thorough compliance across the
entire supply chain. We conduct transactions founded on the
basic purchasing policies of the NICHICON Group, with
emphasis on open, fair and lawful trading.
We comply with the Subcontracting Law as a basic policy,
with our goal being compliance across the entire value chain*.
Particular measures to reduce risk include the establishment of a
business continuity plan (BCP) and responding appropriately to
the issue of conflict minerals. We adhere thoroughly to the
practices outlined in the NICHICON Group Code of Conduct.
chain: the chain of activities covering every stage at which value is
* Value
added, from materials procurement through to consumption by the final
customer; in other words, the flow of value.

Supplier Meetings for Coexistence and
Co-Prosperity
Each spring and autumn, the NICHICON Group invites its principal
business partners to take part in supplier meetings. During these
meetings, we explain our “Top Notch Management” policy and our
aim to switch from being a manufacturing business to being a
“creation business” by shifting our perspective from manufacturing
to Koto-Zukuri (the creation of customer expectations), as well as
our aim of being a company that impresses all its customers. We
also describe our operating environment and work to strengthen ties
with our business partners.
With regard to reducing environmental impact, we ask business
partners to make improvements in line with the NICHICON
Group’s green procurement guidelines, and we encourage close
communications to this end.
We held supplier meetings in May 2015, inviting 280
representatives from 155 companies, from among our major
business partners.

Supplier meeting

NICHICON and Society

Responsibility and Conduct toward Our Employees
Our Basic Philosophy Concerning Employment
Under our basic policy of ensuring employment, we will seek to
strengthen the foundation of human resources in order to
achieve further expansion and growth.
When hiring employees, we do not make our selection based
on gender, age and/or nationality. We look for people who
respond well to challenges; are full of vitality; always put their
heart and soul into their work; are clear-headed, responsible and
determined; and show strong perseverance. Those who try their
best at whatever they attempt while working towards lofty goals
are given the environment to do so. Also, we do our best at
creating a work environment in which our employees can enjoy
their work.

Respect for Fundamental Human Rights and
Human Rights Education
Having the proper awareness for human rights is imperative for
society. The NICHICON Group considers human rights to be of
paramount importance. Our Code of Conduct expresses this
sentiment, stating that “Respect for the individual and respect for
privacy are the fundamental rights of all people.”
The “Code of Conduct” is recited at our weekly morning
assemblies. We provide human rights education and seek to create
an environment in which harassment, both verbal and physical, are
completely intolerable.

Promotion of Diversity
The NICHICON Group is engaged in the promotion of diversity.
With regard to the employment of people with physical
disabilities, there are ongoing recruiting activities to achieve
and maintain the statutory employment rate.
As for the employment of seniors, those with motivation and
ability who are to leave their jobs after reaching retirement age
are re-employed, and as a system in which they can utilize their
skills and experience for the further development of the
Company, we instituted a post-retirement reemployment system
in FY2006.
We also actively hire foreign exchange students to better
understand various perspectives around the world.

Work-Life Balance Realization
The Extended Child Care Leave System and the Extended Family
Care Leave System were introduced as programs that give our
employees peace of mind. Our goal is to encourage an
appropriate balance between their work and private life.
All of the details regarding leave, extended leave, reduced
work hours and overtime exemption systems related to childbirth,
child care and family care, as well as the impressions and
comments of those who have used the systems, are introduced in

the company bulletin. By creating a climate in which all systems
can be used easily at all Group facilities, we are increasing both
the percentage of extended child care leave taken and the number
of employees who have utilized the extended child care leave
program multiple times.
In addition, we are seeking to introduce and implement
programs geared toward achieving a more comfortable working
environment. We plan on achieving this by implementing a plan
based on the Law to Promote Measures to Support the
Development of the Next Generation.

Creating a Comfortable and Meaningful Work
Environment
The NICHICON Group has implemented an expanded employee
benefit program so that our employees feel secure and can work
comfortably. In addition to benefits established by law such as
social health insurance and labor insurance, we have established
voluntary benefit programs that cover the five areas of “health,”
asset building,” lifestyle security, “fruitful lifestyles,” and
“post-retirement security,” all of which support our eligible current
and former employees.

Education / Training System
The NICHICON Group knows that people are its most valuable
managerial asset. Similarly, we believe that our employees are
the driving force behind the Company. Therefore, we offer a wide
range of personnel training programs. The NICHICON Group
offers specialized courses, including new employment training,
training for sales personnel and individual class instruction. Also,
by collaborating with various universities, we offer management
of technology (MOT) education, etiquette and manners seminars,
and distance learning programs.
We encourage each of our employees to obtain QM/QC
Examination (Certification) and take part in a variety of
correspondence courses, fostering their training and boosting
their skills through personal development.

Commendation System and Invention
Incentive System
The NICHICON Group rewards model employees who have made
significant achievements or have shown excellent performance at
work. Awards are given yearly on the Company’s anniversary.
Employees who have received awards get their names and
achievements listed in the company bulletin in addition to receiving
prizes or award money.
Also, in order to raise the motivation of employees involved in
research and development, the NICHICON Group has instituted an
“Invention Incentive System” to incentivize employees creating
work-related patents, new application proposals and designs. In
FY2014, 119 incentives were awarded.
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Responsibility and Conduct toward Our Employees
Frequency Rate (Number of Cases of Accident-Related Leave
per Million Work Hours)

Ensuring Occupational Safety and Health
Each business facility of the NICHICON Group provides
periodic safety and health education programs to its employees.
Each day, our employees recite the safety rules and identify any
potential danger. Our operators also engage in kiken yochi
(danger prediction) training, or KYT, to increase their safety
and reduce the possibility of injury. Regarding the safety of our
new employees, they are thoroughly educated so that every task,
including on-the-job training (OJT), is conducted safely.
In FY2014, “zero occupational accidents and compliance with
work procedures” was made a priority Group-wide.
For example, at the quarterly cross-check meetings attended by the
Environmental Safety and Health Committee, as well as
representatives from the head office and business facilities, participants
discuss occupational safety and health issues at business facilities.
Problems identified at these meetings are addressed by relevant
facilities along with any corrective measures. Meeting participants
also adopt the good practices of other facilities in their own activities.
We also work to provide similar work environments
throughout each facility and their activity levels by compiling a
Company-wide improvement status report on issues identified
at each facility and providing it to each facility.
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Case Examples
We conduct a variety of training programs at each of our
facilities to make employees safer and more aware.
Training programs include instruction on traffic safety during
commutes as well as emergency medical training, such as
techniques for using automatic external defibrillators and other
equipment.

Our in-house fire brigade training includes fire extinguisher
and fire hose skills improvement. In addition, we invite local
firefighters to speak to our employees on what to do in the case
of an emergency, as well as how to evacuate a building and
operate fire equipment. This gives us a deeper understanding of
what to do if an accident were to ever occur on site.

In-house fire brigade
activities

Health and safety activities
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•In-house training for employees handling
electricity
NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION

•Training on handling specific chemical
substances
NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION

•Class on crane operation
NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION

•Training on discharging water from fire
hydrants
NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION

•Environment safety and health committee
NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION

•Life-saving training course
NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION

•Traffic safety awareness activities
NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION

•Disaster preparedness training
NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION
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NICHICON and the Environment

Promotion of Environmental Management
The NICHICON Group’s Environmental Charter
(Enacted December 1997, revised August 2015)
Environmental Principles The NICHICON Group aims for
“Harmonious Coexistence with the Global Environment” and a
“Society Sensitive to Humankind and the Environment”, and
proceeds with its operations, taking environmental protection
into great consideration.
Policies Regarding Activities NICHICON CORPORATION
affirms the following company-wide action plan which stipulates the
effective use of resources and prevention of environmental pollution
as the top priorities. In addition, an independent and unique theme is
designed for each factory and office according to the operations and
characteristics of the region, while promoting the reduction of
environmental loads from every aspect of our business operations.
1. Strive to offer products that have less impact on the environment.
2. In addition to observing environment-related laws and regulations, construct
voluntary management standards and promote adherence.
3. Take action for energy and resource conservation.
4. Make efforts toward the reduction and recycling of waste.
5. Make efforts on the reduction in the use and disposal of ozone layer disrupters,
global warming substances and other hazardous substances through the use,
collection and recycling of alternative substances.
6. Advance Biodiversity Conservation.
7. Offer environmental education and training to raise employees’ awareness of the
environment and an understanding of NICHICON’s environmental concepts and
environmental action plan.
8. Take part in local community activities for environmental protection to contribute to
the society.
9. Continuously improve voluntary environmental management activities through
environmental audit activities, etc.

Organization for Environmental Protection
Within the NICHICON Group, the general manager of the CSR Office
(operating officer) takes full responsibility for environmental
management and strategies, policies, objectives and environmental
conservation promotion activities. These responsibilities are discussed
and decided upon by the Environmental Management Committee. At
this time, the facilities are informed of the decisions made by the
committee and the quality of the environmental management. In
addition, environmental performance is improved by implementing
the PDCA cycle—Plan, Do, Check and Act.
Finally, in each domestic manufacturing facility the factory
manager determines environmental management. The manager
designates the EMS supervisor and drafts an appropriate
environmental conservation policy based on the environmental
impact of each facility.

Acquisition Status of Certification of ISO 14001
In August 1996, aiming at harmonious coexistence with the global
environment, the NICHICON Group decided to obtain ISO 14001
certification. This led to the establishment of environmental
management systems that conform to global standards.
Based on this policy, all manufacturing facilities at home
and abroad (nine domestic and three overseas) have already
obtained the certification.

Environmental Audit
Every year, each facility goes through an internal environmental
audit conducted by each facility. This process entails
management system and compliance audits and an
environmental performance and external audit by a certified
organization and an audit by the headquarters covering all
business facilities within the Group. These activities are
performed to examine whether the system is functioning
effectively and producing good results.
External Review Results in FY2014
Name of facilities
NICHICON HI-TECH FOIL CORPORATION
(OHMACHI FACTORY)
NICHICON HI-TECH FOIL CORPORATION
(TOMITA FACTORY)
NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION
NICHICON (KAMEOKA) CORPORATION
NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION /
NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION SITE II FACTORY
NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION SITE III FACTORY
NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION
NICHICON (WAKASA) CORPORATION
Total

Suggested
matters

Opportunity for Strong point
improvement Good point

0

6

2

0

5

1

0
0

5
6

2
2

0

8

2

0
0
0
0

5
5
5
45

2
1
0
12

Environmental Education and Awareness Activities
During the past year, throughout our facilities we provided no less
than 208 environmental education sessions. These included
programs under the Environmental Management System, programs
for new hires, special training for internal environmental auditors
and programs designed for various employee classes and job types.
In recent years, we have emphasized employee education regarding
hazardous materials prohibited by the RoHS Directive, the ELV
Directive and other regulations. We recognize that the
environmental awareness of each and every employee is important
to environmentally friendly management, and therefore we seek to
expand environmental knowledge and perspectives by including
articles on a variety of environmental topics, such as NICHICON’s
CO2 reduction efforts, policies for CO2 reduction in the electronics
industry, and biodiversity, in the “NICHICON Environmental
News” section of our company bulletin. The NICHICON Group
does not believe that securing a certain number of people who have
acquired certain environmental qualifications in each of its
factories is important. Rather, we believe that more employees
should acquire such qualifications to develop and strengthen our
environmental conservation activities, enhancing our awareness of
the environment. For this purpose, we recommend that our
employees take part in a correspondence course to acquire these
qualifications, in addition to receiving education through business
activities. Furthermore, in FY2014 we increased opportunities for
self-development through participation in training workshops and
the like for engineers to increase the number of qualified persons.
A total of 56 individuals within the Group acquired
environment-related qualifications in FY2014. We remain aware of
the importance of employee environmental education, and will
continue to make such efforts.
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Data on the Environmental Impact of Business Activities
The NICHICON Group measures the impact of business on the
environment and uses the data to reduce environmental impact.
A comparison of FY2014 to FY2013 shows that our efforts to
reduce CO2 emissions have resulted in changes in the forms of
energy we use. Energy input is mainly electricity, with
year-on-year volume rising from 518,589,000 kWh to
557,045,000 kWh (an increase of 7.4%). LNG also increased,
from 5,991 t to 9,091 (an increase of 52%), but fuel oil use
declined from 4,796 kℓ to 1,072 kℓ (a decrease of 77.6%), and
city gas use decreased from 397,000 m³ to 378,000 m³ (a 4.8%
decrease). Output of CO2 emissions rose year on year, from

Electricity

LNG

INPUT

City gas

248,593 t-CO2 to 262,908 t-CO2 (an increase of 5.7%). The
amount of waste disposed of in landfills decreased from 113 t to
88t (a 22.1% decrease), and we maintained a waste recycling
rate of 99.8%.
In the future, we will continue working to reduce energy
consumption in the basic unit of production output, as well as
lower CO2 emissions, by promoting greater manufacturing
efficiency. In addition, toward zero emission activity, which we
have achieved to deal with waste, we will maintain a recycling
rate of 99%, and reduce the amount of landfill waste to zero. We
will continue our activity aimed at the conservation of resources.

LPG

Chemical substances
(subject to PRTR)

LPG

Chemical
substances

213t

199t

Waste water
emissions

BOD

COD

BOD
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14t

9t

Fuel oil

LNG

557,045,000kWh 9,091t

OUTPUT

378,000m³

1,072k

CO2 emissions

NOx emissions

SOx emissions

Chemical substances
(subject to PRTR)

CO2
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Chemical
substances

262,908t-CO2

14t

7t

27t

5,330,000t

Paper

Underground
water

Water supply

4,336,249Sheets 140,000t

6,940,000t

Waste
disposal

Waste
recycling

88t

49,655t

Environmental Accounting
Idea of Environmental Accounting
In FY2000, we introduced accounting for environmental
conservation costs to measure its effect to improve
environmental performance and data. The calculation in the
following data complies with the “2005 Environmental
Accounting Guideline” made public by the Ministry of the
Environment.

With respect to environmental accounting for FY2014, the total
environmental conservation cost was ¥1,857 million, while the
total economic effect amounted to ¥302 million. As part of our
capital investment for environmental conservation, we
renovated deteriorating facilities. This included insulating
factory buildings and replacing old light fixtures with LED
lighting to promote energy conservation.

●Period Covered April 1, 2014–March 31, 2015

●Range of Calculation Nine facilities in the country that have
acquired ISO 14001 certification

Environmental Conservation Costs—
Investment
(Millions of yen)
450

Environmental Conservation Costs—Costs
(Millions of yen)
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Pollution control
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Integrated Report 2015

1,401

500

5
451

0

237
97
2012

368

17

8
644

300

260

180

732
150

289
67

275
62
2013

450

537

519

611

(Millions of yen)

1,642

1,508

Environmental Accounting—
Economic Effects
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Research and development
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Reduction of used chemicals, materials, etc.
Gain on sale of recycled waste
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41
2014
Energy saving
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NICHICON and the Environment

Contribution to a Low-Carbon Society
Case Examples

Approach on the Reduction of CO2 Emissions
The NICHICON Group as a whole works to reduce CO2
emissions that cause global warming. In addition to efforts to
reduce energy consumption per basic unit by working
aggressively to improve production efficiency and reduce the
percentage of defective products, we are promoting the
improvement and efficient operation of facilities which lead to
energy saving.
Further, CO2 reduction is viewed as an activity involving full
employee participation. To give familiar examples, energy
saving is being promoted through such ongoing efforts as
switching to low-emissions equipment, shifting from the use of
fuel oil to LNG as an energy source, proper management of
air-conditioning temperature, switching to LED illumination,
suspension of unnecessary lighting and equipment, and the
adoption of the “idling stop” practice during commuting (those
who commute by private vehicles.) As regards supplier
vehicles, requests are being made to practice eco-driving
(avoiding sudden starting and sudden acceleration) as well as to
cooperate with our Idling Stop Campaign.
Efforts to reduce CO2 are also being made with respect to
distribution and logistics, reducing the number of installments in
the case of products that were being delivered in installments
and changing the manner of shipment to consolidated shipments.
It is hoped that the circle of such CO2 reduction activities will
spread from the facilities to our suppliers and local communities.
Transition of Consumed Energy
LPG 0.67%

LPG / LNG / City gas 8.58%

Fuel oil A 20.55%

Fuel oil A 0.69%

FY 2014

FY 1992

Electricity 78.78%

Electricity 90.73%

CO2 Emissions
(t-CO2)

(t-CO2/100 million yen)

1,000,000

448.42
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422.81

800,000

400

286.24

600,000

474,878
400,000

237.66

455,363

200,000

245.25

200

259,997

248,593

262,908
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2013

2014

0

2010
CO2 emissions

300

2011

100
0
(FY)

Introducing a Steam-Driven Air Compressor in
an Initiative to Reduce CO2 Emissions
NICHICON HI-TECH FOIL CORPORATION (OHMACHI
FACTORY)
Air compressors create the compressed air that is used to
drive machines and control valves in factory equipment.
Until now, air compressors have been electrically
driven, and were therefore a source of the energy directly
consumed in production. With this equipment, we
recognized that it would be difficult to achieve further
energy savings beyond efforts to control the number of
compressors in operation and reduce air expenditures.
By converting to a steam-driven air compressor
(next-generation heat usage equipment) by using factory heat
sources and taking advantage of the energy resulting from a
pressure drop, we succeeded in reducing energy use still
further. During the first
year after introducing
the compressor, our
energy reduction was
87.7Kℓ/year of crude oil
equivalent, down 77%
compared with the
previous model.
Furthermore, CO2
emissions were down
Steam-driven air compressor
by 229.7 t/year.

Reducing Electricity Consumption by
Switching to a Firing Furnace
NICHICON (KAMEOKA) CORPORATION
The burning process that NICHICON (KAMEOKA)
CORPORATION uses in manufacturing the “Posi-R”
(positive thermistor) involves baking pressed materials onto
ceramic. Until now, the company has used a continuous
electrical firing furnace (a “tunnel furnace”) around 10m
long for this process. Due to a tunnel furnace’s
configuration, the power needs to remain on constantly, so
it uses electricity 24 hours a day, every day of the year,
whether products are in the furnace or not. After studying
the possibility of switching over from a tunnel furnace—the
plant’s largest consumer of electricity—to an electric
figuring furnace, it became possible for the plant to put a
“floating furnace” into commercial operation. With a
floating furnace, the power only needs to remain on when
products are inside. The furnace’s structure is simple and
reduced electricity consumption by around one-third,
compared with the previous furnace. Furthermore,
compared with the tunnel furnace, the new furnace allows
for more precise control of the electrical characteristics
that affect product quality, achieving quality improvement
at the same time.
We will continue
working to reduce
electricity
consumption and
improve product
quality by promoting
the switch from tunnel
furnaces to floating
Floating furnace
furnaces.

Basic unit of sales
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Waste Reduction and Effective Use of Resources
Waste Reduction and Recycling Initiatives

Proper Management of Waste

Aiming for the establishment of a sound material-recycling
society, the NICHICON Group has been promoting the
reduction and recycling of waste. We set the definition of zero
emission as “recycling at least 98% of total waste,” and we have
achieved this goal since FY2002.
In FY2014, although the amount of waste material increased
in line with the rise in production, we achieved a recycling rate
of 99.8% as a result of the ongoing conversion of waste, such as
paper, scrap metal and waste plastic, into valuable resources.
Total Waste Emissions, Amount of Recycling, Recycling Rate
(t)

99.7

100,000
80,000

84,285 83,619
70,598 70,030

45,075 44,740

60
49,980
49,655

0

2010
Total emissions

2011
Amount of recycling

Breakdown of Waste Generation
Metallic scrap

Waste plastic

1%
Others 2%

2012

2013

2014

(FY)

Recycling rate

Direct recycling
48,909t

Final Disposal Volume
Waste paper 2%
Sludge

23%

FY 2014

Breakdown
of Total
Emissions

Waste and valuable waste
generation quantity
49,980t

20

0

Sludge 19%

Waste Disposal Flow

40

20,000

2%

(%)
100
80

50,398 50,020

60,000
40,000

99.8

99.8

99.8

99.7

The NICHICON Group has outsourced industrial waste
management to an outside contractor. Industrial waste disposal
is a large responsibility, since it is attributed to the party
generating the waste. For this reason, we try to prevent illegal
dumping and pollution accidents. When consigning waste
disposal, we audit the consignee in advance. In addition, we
personally conduct on-site inspections of the permanent
disposal sites after the consignment and continue to perform
audits regularly, thereby assessing the consignee’s waste
disposal situation.
Further, every day we are working to manage waste properly
by thoroughly enforcing patrolled inspection of the waste
storage areas and management based on the Industrial Waste
Control Manifest.

Others 3%
Waste plastic

48%

FY 2014

Amount of recycling
49,655t
Recycling after
intermediate
treatment
746t

Direct permanent
disposal
22t
Amount of disposal
88t
Permanent disposal
after intermediate
treatment
66t

Recycling items
Sludge:
Waste oil:
Waste acid:
Waste plastic:
Metal:

Waste acid 76%

Consignment of
intermediate
treatment
1,049t

Flocculating agent and metallic collection (nickel)
Combustion improver and collection for recycling
Flocculating agent
Fuel and cement material
Recycled metal (aluminum)

Pottery waste 24%

Biodiversity Conservation
NICHICON’s Stance on Biodiversity Conservation
The NICHICON Group’s Environmental Principles call for
“Harmonious Coexistence with the Global Environment” and a
“Society Sensitive to Humankind and the Environment,” and we
conduct all operations with environmental protection in mind.
Our actions for biodiversity include achieving ISO 14001 certification,
lead-free products, delivery of products responsive to efforts to curtail
materials having an environmental impact, production and sale of
energy generation, energy storage, and energy saving products such as
the “EVPower Station” and the “Home Power Station,” waste
reduction, and CO2 emissions reduction.
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Conserving Underground Water and Protecting the
“Three-Spined Stickleback,” an Endangered Species
The city of Ohno, Fukui Prefecture, where such NICHICON Group
facilities as the NICHICON HI-TECH FOIL CORPORATION
TOMITA FACTORY and NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION are
located, is blessed with abundant natural springs. The city has been
designated by Japan’s Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and
Tourism as one of “100 selected water spots” for its numerous springs,
including Oshozu. The clarity of the springs of Ohno even features in
Japanese tales. The Ministry of the Environment has declared one of
these springs, Hongan-Shozu, the habitat of an endangered species, the
“three-spined stickleback.”*

NICHICON and the Environment

Proper Management and Risk Management
of Chemical Substances
Reduction of Emissions and Transference Volume of Chemical Substances
The NICHICON Group, based on the PRTR Act*, reports the
targeted chemical substances to the government after
determining their transaction volume, emission, and
transference. We also work on reducing emissions (into the
atmosphere, water, and soil) of hazardous chemicals (subjects of
Type 1 specified chemical substances in the PRTR).
PRTR research results in FY2014 were 25 transaction materials
and 13 substances subject to registering out of the 462 materials

of Type 1 specified chemical substances reported to the
government as of June 30.
is an abbreviation of Pollutant Release and Transfer Register and is
* PRTR
a mechanism for tracking, compiling and publicly announcing data on the
amount of hazardous chemical substances that were either emitted into
the environment or transported outside of business facilities as waste. The
PRTR Act is short for the “Act on Confirmation, etc. of Release Amounts
of Specific Chemical Substance in the Environment and Promotion of
Improvement to the Management Thereof.”

PRTR Investigation Results (FY2014: Domestic)
Transaction
volume

(t)

Emission
Emissions to Emissions to public
Emissions to soil
the atmosphere
water systems

Transference
Disposal by
reclamation

Total
emissions

Drainage

Others (waste)

Transference
total

FY2014

199.37

11.33

15.54

0.00

0.00

26.87

0.00

13.20

13.20

FY2013

201.03

13.61

16.43

0.00

0.00

30.04

0.00

15.80

15.80

FY2012

171.35

6.67

10.09

0.00

0.00

16.77

0.00

48.82

48.82

FY2011

316.59

7.22

10.79

0.00

0.00

18.01

0.00

16.42

16.42

FY2010

299.27

5.44

10.86

0.00

0.00

16.29

0.00

16.71

16.71

Prevention of Air and Water Pollution
The NICHICON Group has established voluntary emission
standards for the prevention of air and water pollution, which
are stricter than the standards stipulated by current laws and
regulations. Based on our environmental management system,
we conduct regular sampling and maintain strict control of
pollutants and making significant efforts to prevent pollution.
Sampling for boiler smoke and soot
measurement

In October 2000, the city of Ohno announced its intention to set up
a fund to protect the quality of underground water in its region. As the
NICHICON Group takes the local environment into consideration in
its manufacturing activities on a daily basis and Group policy was
aligned with the measures proposed by the city of Ohno, we decided to
help establish the fund.
Each year, the NICHICON Group will continue to contribute to this
fund, as part of its efforts to pass on to future generations the regional
treasures of abundant spring water and the habitat of the “three-spined
stickleback.”

Hongan-Shozu, a “Three-Spined
Stickleback” habitat

Sampling for draining water analysis

“Three-spined stickleback”

“three-spined stickleback” is designated the Ministry of the Environment as an endangered species LP, indicating that local groups exist regionally, but
* The
the population is at high threat of extinction. In Fukui Prefecture, the species is also classified as anⅠ-class prefectural endangered species.
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Products and Technologies that Reduce
Environmental Impact
Basic Approach to Product Development
The NICHICON Group aims for “Harmonious Coexistence with
the Global Environment,” and each of its facilities promotes the
development of products that will contribute to environmental
conservation.
Our products named “GeoXXX” are free from polyvinyl
chloride (PVC), lead and sulfur hexafluoride (SF6). In addition
to preventing hazardous substances from polluting the
atmosphere when disposed of, these products are smaller, so
they use fewer materials. We are also promoting the
development of other environmentally friendly products,
including those that save energy by reducing friction and offer
longer life and extended maintenance cycles. Designed for the
use of natural energy and the economical creation and efficient
storage and use of electric power, our lineup includes compact
EV Quick Chargers, onboard power charger, the “EVPower
Station” Vehicle-to-Home (V2H) system and a household
energy storage system, the “Home Power Station.” Combining
these products with electric power generation equipment can
produce an estimated 76 million kWh per year, achieving an
equivalent reduction in CO2 emissions of around 42,000 t. The
NICHICON Group is actively contributing to the development
of a low-carbon society by offering such facilities for use at the
community level.

Compliance Work for the RoHS Directive
The standard type products sold by the NICHICON Group
comply with the RoHS Directive* (an EU directive concerning
usage restrictions on certain harmful substances). The revised
EU RoHS Directive was promulgated on July 1, 2011. We
comply strictly with the items in force from January 2013
(2011/65/EU).
Also, in regards to PVC, which is feared to generate dioxins
during incineration, we have established PVC-free products
incorporating such alternatives as polyethylene terephthalate
(PET) as our standard products. Furthermore, regulations on
chemical substances comparable to the EU’s RoHS Directive
are now being enforced throughout the world; an example being
China, which also enforced the “Management Methods for
Controlling Pollution by Electronic Information Products”
(China RoHS) on electrical and electronic equipment in March
2007. It is necessary to respond correctly to each set of
regulations although their contents are not uniform. For
example, some regulations provide for exceptions regarding the
same substance subject to restriction under different regulations,
and some regulations stipulate phased implementation of
restrictions. The NICHICON Group is responding to customer
needs by acquiring the latest information on regulations and
applying environmentally friendly design concepts in its
product development.
Abbreviation for Restriction of the Use of Certain
* RoHS Directive: Hazardous
Substances in Electrical and Electronic
Equipment (enforced in EU countries from July 2006).
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Green Procurement that Secures
the Environmental Performance of a Product
The NICHICON Group is revising and implementing the
NICHICON Group Green Procurement Guidelines, first
published in 2005 to keep up with the regulatory trends.
The current edition, the 8th, was published in October 2014.
To provide our customers with products that are safe to use, the
8th edition defines 47 types of prohibited substances, four types
of curtailed substances eight types of controlled substances. As
a result of our suppliers’ understanding and practicing green
procurement, we have been able to create a supply chain that
provides materials and products manufactured under strict
control.

Compliance Work for the REACH Regulation
Before the finished product reaches the hands of consumers,
there is a very long flow through the supply chain, from raw
materials to parts, components, modules and then the final
products.
In accordance with REACH* regulations, if a product
contains more than 0.1% by weight of a Substance of Very High
Concern (SVHC), there is the obligation to provide the content
information to the consumers and the product providers. SVHCs
are substances that put humans and the environment at an
unacceptable risk; there is an updated list announced
semiannually by the European Chemicals Agency (ECHA). The
most recent list, announced in May 2015, contained 161
substances. Through the supply chain, the NICHICON Group
gathers and provides the content information on chemical
substances including SVHCs.
Abbreviation of Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and
* REACH: Restriction
of Chemicals. It is a chemical regulation enacted by
EU in June 2007, which obligates the manufacturing/importing
firms to evaluate the safety of chemicals and restricts the use of
highly hazardous chemicals by adopting a registration system for
them.

Compliance Work for the ELV Directive
The NICHICON Group is addressing the ELV Directive*
(European Parliament and Council Directive on used vehicles),
as well as providing high-performance car electronics that
satisfy intense use requirements involving heat and vibrations
specific to automobiles.
for end-of-life vehicles. The directive was
* ELV Directive: Abbreviation
designed to restrict the use of certain hazardous
substances in vehicles, thereby facilitating the recycling
thereof at the end of their lifespan. It prohibits the use of
heavy metals (lead, cadmium, mercury, hexavalent
chromium) in new vehicles registered on or after July 1,
2003, with the exception of components for which it is
difficult to establish an alternative technology.

NICHICON and the Environment

NICHICON Environmentally Friendly Products Aimed at
Harmonious Coexistence with the Global Environment
Adding High-Capacitance φ12.5–18mm Products
to the CZ Series Lineup of Chip Type Aluminum
Electrolytic Capacitors with a Low-Temperature
ESR Specification
The rapid increase in adoption of electronic controls for
automobiles in recent years has led to a shift in the placement of
electronic control units (ECUs) and various other control units
to locations inside the cabin or near the engine compartment.
Electronics placed near the engine can be affected by its
radiative heat. They can also be affected by exposure to ambient
temperatures when used in cold regions. Furthermore, from an
environmental impact perspective, demand calls for products
that are space saving and energy efficient. Components used in
these environments must be able to withstand high
temperatures, have stable low-temperature characteristics, be
smaller and have high ripple tolerance.
To address these needs, we have added high-capacitance φ
12.5–18mm products to our CZ series (UCZ) lineup of
chip-type aluminum electrolytic capacitors with a
low-temperature ESR specification. This series has
low-temperature ESR characteristics, suiting it for use in
onboard harsh-temperature environments such as near the
engine. Expanding the size of these products allows for the use
of high-capacitance electrolytic foil, increasing their
capacitance by as much as four times that of our previous 125°C
products in the UE series (UUE). Through the new adoption of
a separator (electrolytic paper) and an electrolyte containing a
newly developed low-evaporation solvent, as well as optimizing
the combination of materials used, we succeeded in achieving
the industry’s highest level of stability in low-temperature ESR
characteristics compared with other products of the same size.

High-capacitance φ12.5–18mm products added to the CZ series
lineup of chip type aluminum electrolytic capacitors with a
low-temperature ESR specification

Receiving the Japan Electric Construction
Association Encouragement Award at JECA
FAIR 2014 for Our Lithium-Ion Battery Type
Voltage Sag Compensator for Power Outages
Our lithium-ion battery type voltage sag compensator for power
outages is the industry’s first power outage compensator to
employ a standard commercial power supply method and a
long-life lithium-ion battery in a storage battery device,
achieving high efficiency and low power consumption. In
recognition of the superior achievement of a 15-year expected
life in the capacitor area, achieved by using control operations
to take into account deterioration of the long-life lithium-ion
battery, this product received the Japan Electric Construction

Association Encouragement Award at the JECA
FAIR 2014, the 62nd Electrical Construction Equipment and
Materials Fair. As this product substantially reduces running costs
compared with conventional products of its type, NICHICON
considers it an optimal business continuity plan (BCP) solution.

Lithium-ion battery type voltage sag compensator for power outages

Measures Using Dispersed Power Sources
Dispersed power sources can act as storage batteries to store the
electricity produced by solar cells, supplying power by operating
autonomously over long periods even during charging power
outages. They also have applications in addition to emergency
use. For example, using the storage battery of a dispersed power
source to supply electricity during peak usage periods can help
reduce peak load and shift the peak, curtailing the amount of
energy purchased from electric utilities and helping to reduce
CO2. In other words, dispersed power sources are intelligent
systems that function in a number of ways depending on the
situation. Accordingly, they are expected to find application in a
wide range of scenarios. To date, we have provided around 200
dispersed power sources to schools, community centers and
public facilities designated as evacuation centers. They
contribute to energy generation by making use of renewable
energy, to energy storage with storage batteries and to energy
saving by controlling the amount of energy used. Consequently,
in addition to being environmentally friendly, they help ensure
safety in emergency evacuation conditions. By providing this
product, NICHICON is contributing to a brighter future for
society and helping to attain a better environment.

Lithium-ion power storage system for public and industrial use that is space saving and
has a compartmentalized structure
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Research and Development Activities

The NICHICON Group stresses such fields as energy, environment & medical
equipment, automotive & railway-car appliances, household electrical
appliances & industrial inverters, and information & communications
equipment. In these markets, the Group strives to develop highly competitive
new products that offer high levels of reliability, stability and performance, with
our main products, aluminum electrolytic capacitors, conductive polymer
aluminum solid electrolytic capacitors, plastic film capacitors and other
electronic devices, as well as power supplies, function modules and circuit
products such as capacitor applied systems and equipment.
Research and development expenses for the Group in the current
consolidated fiscal year stood at 3,198 million yen.
The status of research and development by product is as follows:

(1) Capacitors for Electronics
1) NICHICON independently conducts all research and development of the
basic materials that go into manufacturing its aluminum electrolytic
capacitors, including electrode foils and electrolytes. The Group offers various
capacitors for the priority fields listed above, including large can-type
capacitors with screw terminals, chip-type capacitors suited for surface
mounting and conductive polymer aluminum solid electrolytic capacitors
using conductive polymer as cathode materials to respond to market demand
for more advanced products as industry applications continue to diversify.
In chip type aluminum electrolytic capacitors, we have developed the LV
Series (ULV) and LT Series (ULT), rated at 500V for mid- to high-voltage
use, to extend our range of rating levels. These products are ideal for use in
automotive ballasts; LED lighting, which is gaining attention for its low
power consumption and long life; and power sources. Based on the
technologies we have accumulated to date, we have combined highly reliable
electrolytes with a high withstand voltage, higher-capacitance foils for
high-voltage use and optimal materials to achieve the industry’s first
products with guarantees at a 500V rating for 10,000 hours at 105°C (the LV
Series) and for 2,000 hours at 125°C (the LT Series). Offering longer life,
these products answer the demand for flat mounting in miniaturized set
products, particularly for smooth inputs on various power sources.
We also expanded our product range of low-temperature ESR products
primarily for automotive use with the CZ Series (UCZ), measuring φ
12.5–18mm. This series is particularly well suited for use in
harsh-temperature conditions, such as in the vicinity of automobile engines.
By using products with low-temperature ESR characteristics, expanding our
range of sizes and employing high-capacitance electrolytic foil, we achieved
capacitance as much as four times that of our previous UE Series (UUE),
which is rated at 125°C. By using a newly applied separator (electrolytic
paper) and newly developed electrolytes with low-transpiration solvents, as
well as an optimal combination of materials, we achieved the industry’s
highest level of stable ESR characteristics in a product of this class.
In our LD Series (ULD) of long-life miniature type aluminum electrolytic
capacitors, we added products rated at 10–100V, mainly for use in power
supplies for LED lighting and general power supply adapters. By optimizing
component structure and product design, this series extends product life by as
much as twice, compared with the compact HV Series (UHV) that preceded
it. By increasing the range of ratings, this series extends product life from
low to high voltages, making them ideal aluminum electrolytic capacitors for
LED lighting power supplies, which require longer life, as well as various
other types of power supplies.
2) With respect to plastic film capacitors, we are focusing efforts on the
development of smoothing film capacitors, including the development of
metalized film as a basic material. These will be applied to inverter circuits
used in the field of appliances related to automotive & railway-car appliance,
specifically for running the motors of hybrid, electric and fuel-cell vehicles,
which have a low environmental impact and are undergoing dramatic growth.
Film capacitors used for inverter circuit units that run hybrid vehicle motors
have been well received by automotive manufacturers in Japan and overseas
due to their high frequency characteristics and high current
performance-resistance, longer life, high reliability and safety and ability to
meet various customer requirements flexibly. Also, based on the demand for
long life, reliable products for renewable energy, such as wind- and solar
power generation, and general-purpose inverters and other industrial
equipment, NICHICON developed the EJ Series of DC filtering smoothing
capacitors. By reducing the thickness of the vapor-deposited film and
increasing the element housing capacitance, this series reduces product
dimensions by 40% compared with the previous EU Series. At the same time,
by adopting a fully resin-molded type (caseless stracture), this series is
compatible with use at low temperatures (-40°C) as well as in
high-temperature, high-humidity conditions (85°C 85%RH 1000h).
Furthermore, the series employs a vapor-deposited film safety configuration
to boost safety in use and achieve longer product life.
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(2) Capacitors for Electric Apparatus and Power Utilities
Our lineup of phase-advancing capacitors and peripherals, including the
GeoDRY® disaster-resistant phase-advancing capacitors, is applicable in
high-voltage power reception/transformation facilities and low voltage
terminals. Placement of phase-advancing capacitors contributes to reducing loss
from diminishing line current and lowering voltage sags, as well as the effective
use of reception/transformation facilities and significantly reduced electricity
costs. We have also rounded out our lineups of products such as momentary
voltage sag compensators and power outage compensator, which contribute to
electric power backup and stability, as well as products related to power control
systems. As a result, we propose comprehensive products that offer advanced
power stability to comply with BCPs and other applications. We meet customer
needs by being the first in our industry to offer environmentally friendly
products that do not contain SF6 gas, polyvinyl chloride or lead, while working
to develop internationally competitive products focused on global markets.

(3) Circuit Products
As global warming becomes increasingly evident, around the world demand is
mounting for the reduction of CO2 emissions, which are considered to be the
source of this warming. Since the launch of mass-produced electric vehicles
(EVs)—next-generation vehicles that do not emit CO2 while traveling—in
addition to integrated charger/high voltage DC-DC converters and
high-capacitance DC-DC converters, we have supplied on-board chargers.
At the same time, the establishment of charging facilities is essential to the
spread of EVs, and the public and private sectors are working together to
increase the number of charging units. NICHICON sells EV Quick Chargers
(with output capacitances of 10 kW, 20 kW, 30 kW and 50 kW) that apply EV
on-board charger technologies with standardized main components. In
particular, as accounting grows more commonplace we are seeing a significant
increase in sales of the EV Quick Chargers with accounting systems, a lineup
we introduced last year.
In line with user needs, we developed the “EVPower Station,” which uses
batteries installed in EVs as a power supply for the home and the “Home Power
Station,” which uses high-capacitance lithium-ion batteries. In 2012, we
commercialized the “EVPower Station,” which has been well received. To
encourage its broader use, recently we enabled connection with the MIRAI, a
fuel cell vehicle developed by Toyota Motor Corporation.
Our household energy storage system, the “Home Power Station,”
contributes to the elimination of power supply instability and the use of
renewable energy by leveling electrical power demand during peak shifts and
producing power locally for local consumption.
In addition to their conventional use as dispersed power sources, which are
budgeted for in earthquake recovery and Green New Deal policies, we have
added a new dispersion lineup to this energy storage system that offers easier
installation, and have delivered a number of units. These power sources
maximize the use of renewable energy, such as solar, which is stored in lithium
batteries. During normal operation dispersed power sources allow for peak-time
shifts and reduction of peak load, while they provide safety and security in
emergencies by generating and storing solar power.
These activities represent some of the many ways in which NICHICON is
involved in using lithium batteries as power sources. For nearly 20 years, we
have been providing charging/discharging power supplies, which are used in the
production process for the aging of lithium batteries. While meeting stringent
demand for control precision, we have developed systems that curtail costs,
contributing to an unprecedented number of unit deliveries.
In the medical and academic research fields, we provide products for
medical accelerators. Because of their high price, in the past these products
were installed mainly at certain university hospitals and national and
prefectural-level medical institutions. Plans are now underway to install these
devices at private-sector hospitals as well, so installation plans are expected to
increase both in Japan and overseas. Since Japan’s first medical accelerators
were installed during the construction of the National Institute of Radiological
Sciences more than 20 years ago, we have provided important power supplies
to support these systems. Technology has progressed significantly in the
ensuing 20 years, and the sophistication of medical beam control has improved
substantially. High-precision power supplies, one of NICHICON’s specialties,
are employed in this beam control. Thus, we are contributing to the realization
of advanced medicine.
In power supplies for research institutions, NICHICON has delivered to
SACLA—Japan’s world-class X-ray free electron laser facility—a dividing
pulse power supply that generates five laser beams from a single accelerator. As
this product contributes to the efficient use of expensive accelerators, it is
expected to facilitate an increase in the number of research experiments in a
short period of time.
Finally, we are developing various proprietary resonance circuit technologies
and components in response to market needs for power supplies in office
appliances, digital home appliances and entertainment devices. In particular, we

Business Risks

The following risks may affect the Group’s future operating results, stock
prices, financial circumstances and other matters.
Note: Matters reported herein regarding the future were determined by the
Group as of the securities report submission date.

(1) Economic Situation
The Group manufactures and sells capacitors for electronics, plastic film
capacitors, circuit products and other products worldwide. Consequently,
demand for the Group’s products is affected by the economic situation of the
countries or regions where the products are sold.

(2) Risk of Exchange Rate Fluctuations
In the Group’s business operations, business results and financial condition,
items denominated in foreign currencies have been converted into yen in order
to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The values of these items
after the conversion to yen may be affected by exchange rate fluctuations.
Although the Group enters into forward exchange contracts when necessary to
reduce/hedge exchange risks, there is no guarantee that effects on the Group’s
business results and financial circumstances can be completely eliminated.

(3) Risk of Price Competition
The Group aims to strengthen its core businesses, comprising aluminum
electrolytic capacitors, plastic film capacitors and circuit products, and create a
global business framework by strengthening our production bases and
expanding sales structures in Japan and overseas by expediting the
development of new products. These efforts notwithstanding, as the Group’s
products and services face price competition from other businesses, the
Group’s business operations, business results and financial circumstances may
be adversely affected.

(4) Development Risk of New Products
The Group believes that it will continue to be able to develop and supply new
and attractive products that anticipate customer needs. However, if the Group
lacks the following abilities, its business operations, business results and
financial situation may be adversely affected.
1) Ability to deal with increasingly diverse and sophisticated customer needs
2) Ability to develop and produce new products on a timely basis at a
reasonable cost
3) Ability to induce customers to use the Group’s new products
4) Ability to use and develop new products, services and technologies
5) Ability to improve existing products, services and technologies
6) Ability to effectively predict changes in the industry and market

(5) Potential Risk of Overseas Presence
Changes in the taxation system or tax rate; other economic, social, and
political fluctuations; shifts in foreign exchange policy; and export/import
regulatory changes in countries and regions where the Group conducts
business activities may have harmful effects on the Group’s businesses,
achievements or financial circumstances.

aim to contribute to energy savings through highly efficient power supplies that
help reduce CO2 and seek to expand our business by leveraging the
characteristics of our industry-leading standby power reduction equipment.
We will make a proactive contribution to R&D on elemental technologies
that will be needed in the future and take part in the super cluster business being
promoted by the Japanese government. In these ways, we will participate in
collaboration among the public and private sectors and academia to promote
compact and highly efficient power supplies used in next-generation
semiconductors.

The Group has manufacturing bases in China for aluminum electrolytic
capacitors and other products in Wuxi and Suqian. Unforeseen developments
in the political climate, legal environment or economic situation could
negatively impact business in China, adversely affecting the Group’s business
operations, business results and financial circumstances.

(6) Escalation of Raw Materials Purchase Price
Purchase prices of raw materials used for the Group’s main products are
significantly affected by international market conditions. Escalation of those
prices may adversely affect the Group’s business results and financial
circumstances.

(7) Product Liability
Although the Group imposes rigorous quality control measures and
manufactures its products according to the highest international quality control
standards, the possibility of defective products and services provided by the
Group remain. In addition, although covered by product liability insurance, the
Group cannot guarantee that claimable amounts will be fully recompensed.
Losses resulting from any defect may adversely affect the Group’s business
operations, business results, and financial circumstances due to the large costs
involved as well as damage to the reputation of the Group.

(8) Changes in and Reinforcement of Legal Restrictions
Significant statutory and regulatory changes in countries or regions where the
Group conducts business may adversely affect the Group’s business operations
business results, or financial circumstances.
In addition, the business activities of the Group are subject to various
environmental laws and regulations, and environmental responsibility is
assumed for past, current, and future production activities. If environmental
regulations are tightened in the future and additional obligations to remove
hazardous and other substances are imposed, the costs of meeting such
requirements may adversely affect the Group’s business operations, business
results and financial circumstances.

(9) Effect of Accidents, etc.
Although the Group regularly inspects and checks all production facilities in
order to prevent accidents, it is not guaranteed that the adverse effects of
accidents, etc., can be completely prevented or alleviated. They may adversely
affect the Group’s business operations, business results and financial
circumstances.

(10) Others
The risk factors listed above do not cover all the risks regarding the business
activities and other matters concerning the Group. Other risks may develop
and adversely affect the Group’s business operations, business results, and
financial circumstances.

(4) Environmentally Friendly Products
NICHICON strives to offer low environmentally-friendly products that
contribute to the development of a sustainable society. We are providing the
market with this group of products, called “Geo Cap Series.” Using lead-free
terminals and non-PVC sleeves, this series is compliant with major regulations
on hazardous substances, such as the European End-of-Life Vehicle (ELV)
Directive (2000/53/EC), the Restriction of Hazardous Substances (RoHS)
Directive (2011/65/EU), which prohibit the use of hazardous substances with
minor exceptions, and the Chinese version of RoHS (Law Concerning the
Prevention and Control of Pollution from the Production of Electronic and
Information Products). Similarly, we are undertaking an environmentally
friendly approach to capacitors and peripherals for electric apparatus and power
utilities.
To reduce CO2 emissions, NICHICON will contribute to society by
developing electronic appliances with maximum energy efficiency, highly
efficient, energy saving switching power supplies and an energy
generation/energy storage charging system for EVs.
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Financial Review

Sales
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, orders for
components for inverter products were strong in Asian markets,
and sales of automotive equipment expanded in the European
market. In Japan, demand was affected by a reaction to the
surge ahead of the consumption tax hike. Nevertheless, the
economy remained in a modest recovery stage, and sales of
various types of capacitors for automotive equipment were
favorable. As a result of these factors, net sales expanded 2.5%
year on year, to ¥107,294 million.
Overseas sales accounted for 61.6% of total sales, up 2.7
percentage points (¥66,040 million, up 7.1% year on year). This
was due to higher sales in all regions: a 1.7% rise in sales in the
Americas, from ¥6,793 million to ¥6,908 million; 12.4% higher
sales in Europe, from ¥7,130 million to ¥8,015 million; and a
7.1% increase in sales in Asia, from ¥47,737 million to ¥51,117
million.
By sector, sales of capacitors for electronics increased 5.4%,
to ¥72,814 million, on strong demand for use in automotive and
inverter equipment.
Sales of circuit products decreased 5.8%, to ¥21,273 million,
due to sluggish growth in demand for household energy storage
systems and lackluster sales of function modules.
Sales of capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities
& applied systems and equipment grew 1.2%, to ¥13,207
million. This rise was mainly due to higher sales of capacitors
and equipment for power utilities and capacitor applied
systems.
To accelerate its movement along a growth trajectory going
forward, the NICHICON Group has reorganized its structure
into two areas: capacitors and NECST. We have established a
technology center at Capacitor Business Headquarters and a
development center at NECST Business Headquarters. In
addition to reinforcing our activities on the technology and
development fronts, we have assigned sales representatives to
these divisions to strengthen our business promotion structure.
We are also pursuing integrated business management of the
two headquarters, spanning basic R&D, product design,
manufacturing and sales. We are employing this policy to
improve our positioning in priority markets such as power
electronics, onboard electronics, environmental and medical,
and to expand our business.

Cost of sales and selling, general and
administrative expenses
The Cost of sales amounted to ¥90,249 million, up 1.8% year
on year. In addition to lowering fixed costs and working to
reduce costs by boosting productivity, depreciation and
amortization decreased as a result of impairment losses on fixed
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assets recorded in past fiscal years. By bolstering quality and
undertaking thorough efforts to lower cost of sales, our cost of
sales ratio improved 0.6 percentage point, to 84.1%.
Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses
increased 11.4%, to ¥13,168 million. The main reasons were a
¥211 million rise in freight charges and ¥270 million higher
labor costs. Administrative expenses as a percentage of sales
rose 1.0 percentage point, to 12.3%.

Operating income and income before taxes and
minority interests
As a result of the above factors, operating income decreased
8.0%, to ¥3,877 million.
In other income and expenses, the Group posted ¥484
million in extra expenses for early retirement, but an ¥855
million increase in the foreign exchange gain. Accordingly, net
other income and expenses rose ¥384 million.
Consequently, income before income taxes and minority
interests was up 1.0%, to ¥4,381 million.

Income tax, etc.
Current income tax, etc., decreased 22.4% during the year, to
¥1,189 million.
Due to the application of tax-effect accounting, the posting
of deferred tax assets reduced income taxes to ¥708 million.
As a result, the effective tax rate for the year was 43.3%,
compared with 23.5% in the preceding fiscal year.

Minority interest
Minority interest, deductible from income before income taxes,
was ¥226 million, up from ¥136 million in the previous year.
The primary reason was an increase in the net income of
consolidated subsidiaries corresponding to the interest held by
minority shareholders.

Net income
The factors outlined above led to net income of ¥2,258 million,
down 29.1% year on year. Net income per share amounted to
¥31.65.

Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income, which consists of net income before
minority interests and other comprehensive income, dipped
0.4%, to ¥9,261 million. As major factors, the Company
recorded ¥2,484 million in net income before minority interests,
and the unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities
increased ¥1,402 million, while foreign currency translation
adjustments declined ¥529 million. Of comprehensive income,
comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent was

¥8,921 million, and comprehensive income attributable to
minority interests amounted to ¥340 million.

Liquidity of funds
Cash and cash equivalents stood at ¥20,897 million as of March
31, 2015, up ¥2,078 million from the ¥18,819 million recorded
on March 31, 2014.
The factors causing these changes were as follows:
Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to
¥7,788 million, ¥1,399 million less than in the preceding fiscal
year. Among principal sources of cash, net income before
income taxes and minority interests increased ¥45 million,
while depreciation and amortization fell ¥858 million.
Net cash used in investing activities amounted to ¥648
million, ¥1,612 million less than in the preceding term. The
decrease in net cash used in these activities stemmed from the
fact that although an additional ¥6,125 million was used in the
acquisition of securities and investment securities, compared
with the previous year, revenue from the sale and redemption of
securities and investment securities rose ¥7,207 million.
Free cash flow (net cash provided by operating activities
minus net cash used in investing activities) was a positive
¥6,176 million.
Net cash provided by financing activities came to ¥5,254
million, down ¥2,242 million compared with the preceding
year. Principal factors included a net decrease in short-term
loans and the repayment of long-term bank loans, which
together increased ¥700 million, and an increase of ¥1,434
million for purchases of treasury stock.

the current portion of long-term liabilities together were down
¥2,100 million year on year.
Long-term liabilities increased 4.9%, to ¥8,907 million.
Although the liability for retirement benefits was down ¥749
million, deferred tax liabilities increased ¥1,309 million.
In terms of net assets, common stock and additional paid-in
capital were ¥14,287 million and ¥17,069 million, respectively.
Retained earnings increased ¥1,668 million, to ¥69,265 million.
The net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities, which
corresponds to the difference (after deducting the tax effect)
between the current price and the book value of financial
instruments (calculated by the mark-to-market accounting
system of financial instruments), increased ¥3,457 million, to
¥7,500 million.
Foreign currency translation adjustments, which arise in the
process of converting financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries, etc., increased ¥3,206 million, to ¥4,735 million.
The outstanding balance of treasury stock as of March 31,
2015, was ¥9,558 million, up ¥1,439 million from a year earlier.
As a result of the above, net assets amounted to ¥104,955
million at fiscal year-end, up 7.3% from one year earlier, and
the equity ratio stood at 73.1%, up 1.7 percentage points.

Financial position
Total assets for the Group were ¥141,252 million as of March
31, 2015, up 4.6% from one year earlier.
Current assets totaled ¥79,668 million, up 0.1%. This was
mainly due to a ¥506 million year-on-year increase in trade
receivables.
Property, plant and equipment (after excluding accumulated
depreciation) amounted to ¥26,201 million, down 6.0%. The
Company’s capital investment of ¥2,401 million during the year
was outpaced by depreciation costs of ¥4,279 million. In
addition, the Company wrote down the book value of business
assets among electrode foil manufacturing facilities to their
recoverable value, recording an impairment loss of ¥862
million.
Investments and other assets amounted to ¥35,383 million,
up 28.4%. This was mainly because investment securities
increased ¥7,575 million, to ¥29,949 million.
At the same time, current liabilities declined 4.8%, to
¥27,390 million. This was mainly because short-term loans and
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
As of March 31, 2015
Thousands of U.S.
Dollars (Note 1)

Millions of Yen

2015

ASSETS

2015

2014

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13)

¥

20,897

Time deposits (Note 13)
Marketable securities (Notes 4 and 13)

18,819

$		173,754

―

2,130

―

6,405

7,230

53,252

31,674

31,168

263,356

192

167

1,594

¥

Receivables (Note 13):
Trade
Unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies
Allowance for doubtful accounts

(

Inventories (Note 5)

104)

(

(

81)

869)

17,736

17,624

147,464

565

1,283

4,697

2,303

1,277

19,161

79,668

79,617

662,409

3,630

3,624

30,188

38,057

36,778

316,430

103,508

102,260

860,630

Furniture and fixtures (Note 6)

7,156

6,888

59,496

Lease assets

2,329

2,329

19,366

380

273

3,158

155,060

152,152

1,289,268

124,284)

( 1,071,412)

Deferred tax assets (Note 10)
Other current assets
Total current assets

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 2(9) and 18):
Land
Buildings and structures (Note 6)
Machinery and equipment (Note 6)

Construction in progress (Note 6)
Total
Accumulated depreciation

(

Net property, plant, and equipment

128,859)

(

26,201

27,868

217,856

29,949

22,374

249,012

4,320

4,358

35,922

216

274

1,792

1,271

964

10,571

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:
Investment securities (Notes 4 and 13)
Investments in and advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries
and associated companies (Note 13)
Deferred tax assets (Note 10)
Other assets (Note 6)
Allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 13)

(

Total investments and other assets

TOTAL
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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373)

(

35,383

¥

141,252

(

405)

294,194

27,565

¥

135,050

3,103)

$

1,174,459

Thousands of U.S.
Dollars (Note 1)

Millions of Yen

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

2015

2015

2014

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term borrowings (Notes 7 and 13)

¥

1,800

Current portion of long-term debt (Notes 7 and 13)

¥

900

$

14,966

―

3,000

―

17,232

17,290

143,281

Unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies

137

89

1,141

Construction

934

740

7,767

701

948

5,828

6,273

5,559

52,161

313

245

2,593

27,390

28,771

227,737

Long-term debt (Notes 7 and 13)

1,198

1,621

9,962

Liability for retirement benefits (Note 8)

2,847

3,596

23,668

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 10)

3,507

2,198

29,158

Provision for product warranties

662

372

5,503

Other long-term liabilities

693

706

5,767

8,907

8,493

74,058

14,287

14,287

118,788

Capital surplus

17,069

17,069

141,922

Retained earnings

69,265

67,597

575,914

Payables (Note 13):
Trade

Income taxes payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

Total long-term liabilities
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Note 19)
EQUITY (Notes 9 and 17):
Common stock, authorized, 137,000,000 shares,
issued, 78,000,000 shares in 2015 and 2014

Treasury stock at cost
7,877,789 shares in 2015 and 6,561,596 shares in 2014

(

9,558)

(

(

8,119)

79,468)

Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities

7,500

4,043

62,356

Foreign currency translation adjustments

4,735

1,529

39,373

103,298

96,406

858,885

1,657

1,380

13,779

104,955

97,786

872,664

Subtotal
Minority interests
Total equity
TOTAL

¥

141,252

¥

135,050

$

1,174,459
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Consolidated Statement of Income

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Year Ended March 31, 2015
Thousands of U.S.
Dollars (Note 1)

Millions of Yen

2015

NET SALES (Note 18)

¥

107,294

COST OF SALES (Notes 2 and 12)
Gross profit
SELLING, GENERAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Notes 2, 11, and 12)
Operating income

2015

2014
¥

104,690

$

892,112

90,249

88,652

750,388

17,045

16,038

141,724

13,168

11,822

109,488

3,877

4,216

32,236

693

436

5,761

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):
Interest and dividend income
Interest expense

(

Foreign exchange gain, net

56)

(

1,708
(

17)

Expenses relating to tax in foreign subsidiary

(

592)

Loss on sales or disposals of property, plant, and equipment, net

(

21)

Special retirement expense

(

484)

Loss on impairment of long-lived assets (Note 6)

(

862)

Other income (expenses), net
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY INTERESTS

(

(

(

465)
14,202

853

Equity in losses of associated company

Other, net

(

65)

56)

(

142)

―

(

4,921)

10)

(

178)

―

(

4,026)

(

7,167)

1,482)

135

444

1,126

504

120

4,190

4,381

4,336

36,426

1,189

1,533

9,888

INCOME TAXES (Note 10):
Current
Deferred

708

Total income taxes
NET INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS
MINORITY INTERESTS IN NET INCOME
NET INCOME

¥

(

5,888

516)

1,897

1,017

15,776

2,484

3,319

20,650

226

136

1,875

2,258

¥

3,183

Yen

$

18,775

U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Notes 2(20) and 16):
Basic net income
Cash dividends applicable to the year
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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¥

31.65 ¥

44.56

18.00

16.00

$

0.26
0.15

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Year Ended March 31, 2015
Thousands of U.S.
Dollars (Note 1)

Millions of Yen

NET INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Note 15):
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Share of other comprehensive income in associate
Total other comprehensive income
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent
Minority interests

2015
2,484

¥

¥
¥

¥

2014
3,319

3,463
3,260
54
6,777
9,261 ¥

2,061
3,789
127
5,977
9,296

8,921 ¥
340

9,166
130

$

2015
20,650

$

28,797
27,107
450
56,354
77,004

$

74,178
2,826

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Year Ended March 31, 2015
Thousands

Millions of Yen
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

Number of
Shares of
Common Stock
Outstanding

BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2013
Net income
Cash dividends, ¥15.5 per share
Increase in treasury stock
Net change in the year
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2014
(APRIL 1, 2014, as previously reported)
Cumulative effect of accounting change
(Note 2(12)(c))
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2014 (as restated)
Net income
Cash dividends, ¥17.0 per share
Increase in treasury stock
Net change in the year
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2015

Common
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

Unrealized
Gain on
Available-forSale Securities

Foreign
Currency
Translation
Adjustments

Minority
Interests

Total

Total Equity

71,440
―
―
(
2)
―

¥

14,287 ¥
―
―
―
―

17,069 ¥ 65,521 ¥ ( 8,117) ¥
―
3,183
―
―
( 1,107)
―
―
―
(
2)
―
―
―

1,984 ¥ ( 2,396) ¥ 88,348 ¥
1,439 ¥ 89,787
―
―
3,183
―
3,183
―
―
( 1,107)
―
( 1,107)
―
―
(
2)
―
(
2)
2,059
3,925
5,984
(
59)
5,925

71,438

¥

14,287 ¥

17,069 ¥

67,597 ¥ ( 8,119) ¥

4,043 ¥

1,529 ¥

¥

―
14,287
―
―
―
―
14,287 ¥

―
624
―
17,069
68,221
( 8,119)
―
2,258
―
―
( 1,214)
―
―
―
( 1,439)
―
―
―
17,069 ¥ 69,265 ¥ ( 9,558) ¥

―
4,043
―
―
―
3,457
7,500 ¥

―
624
1,529
97,030
―
2,258
―
( 1,214)
―
( 1,439)
3,206
6,663
4,735 ¥ 103,298 ¥

―
71,438
―
―
( 1,316)
―
70,122

96,406 ¥

1,380 ¥

97,786

―
624
1,380
98,410
―
2,258
―
( 1,214)
―
( 1,439)
277
6,940
1,657 ¥ 104,955

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

Common
Stock

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2014
(APRIL 1, 2014, as previously reported)
Cumulative effect of accounting change
(Note 2(12)(c))
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2014 (as restated)
Net income
Cash dividends, $0.14 per share
Increase in treasury stock
Net change in the year
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2015

Capital
Surplus

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

Unrealized
Gain on
Available-forSale Securities

Foreign
Currency
Translation
Adjustments

Minority
Interests

Total

Total Equity

$ 118,788 $ 141,922 $ 562,044 $ (67,505) $

33,617 $

12,709 $ 801,575 $

11,476 $ 813,051

—
—
5,190
—
118,788
141,922
567,234
( 67,505)
—
—
18,775
—
—
—
( 10,095)
—
—
—
—
( 11,963)
—
—
—
—
$ 118,788 $ 141,922 $ 575,914 $ ( 79,468) $

—
33,617
—
—
—
28,739
62,356 $

—
12,709
—
—
—
26,664
39,373 $

—
11,476
—
—
—
2,303
13,779 $

5,190
806,765
18,775
( 10,095)
( 11,963)
55,403
858,885 $

5,190
818,241
18,775
( 10,095)
( 11,963)
57,706
872,664

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Year Ended March 31, 2015
Thousands of U.S.
Dollars (Note 1)

Millions of Yen

2015

2015

2014

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income before income taxes and minority interests

¥

4,381

¥

4,336

$

36,426

Adjustments for:
(

Income taxes paid
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on sales or disposals of property, plant, and equipment, net

1,396)

(

(

1,496)

11,609)

4,279

5,137

35,580

21

10

178

Changes in assets and liabilities:
1,715

Decrease (increase) in trade accounts receivable

(

688

Decrease in inventories
(

Decrease in trade accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other current liabilities

(

Decrease in liability for retirement benefits

14,259

13)

5,717

417

1,960)

(

407)

642

(

62)

749)

(

286)

(

16,294)
5,340

(

6,231)

167

1,551

1,384

Total adjustments

3,407

4,851

28,324

Net cash provided by operating activities

7,788

9,187

64,750

Other, net

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
(

Purchases of marketable and investment securities

13,918)

(

14,381

Proceeds from sales and redemption of marketable and investment securities

(

7,793)

115,727)
119,575

7,174

Payments for long-term loans

(

50)

(

100)

(

416)

Purchases of property, plant, and equipment

(

1,885)

(

1,748)

(

15,678)

133

126

(

273)

81

(

1,612)

(

2,260)

900

(

1,400)

Repayments from long-term debt

(

3,000)

Purchases of treasury stock

(

1,439)

(

Dividends paid

(

1,277)

Other, net

(
(

Collection of long-term loans receivable
Other, net
Net cash used in investing activities

1,109
(

2,266)

(

13,403)

(

24,944)

5)

(

11,963)

(

1,236)

(

10,618)

438)

(

371)

(

3,640)

5,254)

(

3,012)

(

43,682)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings, net

Net cash used in financing activities
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS ON
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

1,156

1,076

9,616

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2,078

4,991

17,281

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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18,819
¥

20,897

156,473

13,828
¥

18,819

$

173,754

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
As of and for the Year Ended March 31, 2015

1.BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Financial Instruments
and Exchange Act and its related accounting regulations, and in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”),
which are different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain
reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the consolidated
financial statements issued domestically in order to present them in a form
which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. In addition, certain

reclassifications have been made in the 2014 consolidated financial statements
to conform them to the classifications used in 2015.
The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the
currency of the country in which NICHICON CORPORATION (the
“Company”) is incorporated and operates. The translations of Japanese yen
amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of
readers outside Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥120.27 to $1, the
approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2015. Such translations should not
be construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts could be
converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(1) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2015, include the accounts of the Company and its 21 (21 in 2014) significant subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”), which are listed below:

Name
NICHICON HI-TECH FOIL CORPORATION
NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION
NICHICON (KAMEOKA) CORPORATION
NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION
NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION
NICHICON (WAKASA) CORPORATION
TORISHIMA ELECTRIC WORKS LTD.
NIPPON LINIAX CO., LTD.
NICHICON (AMERICA) CORPORATION
NICHICON (HONG KONG) LTD.
NICHICON (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
NICHICON (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD.
NICHICON (TAIWAN) CO., LTD.
NICHICON (AUSTRIA) GmbH
NICHICON (THAILAND) CO., LTD.
NICHICON ELECTRONICS (WUXI) CO., LTD.
NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. *1
FPCAP ELECTRONICS (SUZHOU) CO., LTD. *1
WUXI NICHICON ELECTRONICS R&D CENTER CO., LTD.
NICHICON ELECTRONICS (SUQIAN) CO., LTD.

Country and Jurisdiction
of Incorporation
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
USA
China (Hong Kong)
Singapore
Malaysia
Taiwan
Austria
Thailand
China
China
China
China
China
China

Equity Ownership Percentage
at March 31, 2015
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
49.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

Fiscal
Year-end
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
December 31
December 31
December 31
December 31
December 31
December 31

*1 Although the consolidated subsidiaries “NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD.” and “FPCAP ELECTRONICS (SUZHOU) CO.,
LTD.” have a closing date falling on December 31, the consolidated financial statements contained herein are based on the statements of provisional settlement of
accounts, which were performed on the consolidated closing date.

Under the control and influence concepts, those companies in which the
Company, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control over operations are
fully consolidated, and those companies over which the Group has the ability
to exercise significant influence are accounted for by the equity method.
Investment in one (one in 2014) associated company is accounted for by
the equity method. Investments in four (five in 2014) unconsolidated
subsidiaries and three (three in 2014) associated companies are stated at cost.
If the equity method of accounting had been applied to the investments in these
companies, the effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements
would not have been material.
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized profit included in assets
resulting from transactions within the Group is also eliminated.

(2) Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to
Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated Financial
Statements
In May 2006, the Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) issued ASBJ
Practical Issues Task Force (PITF) No. 18, “Practical Solution on Unification
of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated
Financial Statements.” PITF No. 18 prescribes (1) the accounting policies and
procedures applied to a parent company and its subsidiaries for similar
transactions and events under similar circumstances should in principle be
unified for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements; (2)
financial statements prepared by foreign subsidiaries in accordance with either
International Financial Reporting Standards or the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America tentatively may be used for
the consolidation process; (3) however, the following items should be adjusted
in the consolidation process so that net income is accounted for in accordance
with Japanese GAAP, unless they are not material: (a) amortization of
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goodwill; (b) scheduled amortization of actuarial gain or loss of pensions that
has been recorded in the equity through other comprehensive income; (c)
expensing capitalized development costs of research and development (R&D);
(d) cancellation of the fair value model accounting for property, plant, and
equipment and investment properties and incorporation of the cost model
accounting; and (e) exclusion of minority interests from net income, if
contained in net income.

(3) U
 nification of Accounting Policies Applied to
Foreign Associated Companies for the Equity
Method
In March 2008, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 16, “Accounting
Standard for Equity Method of Accounting for Investments.” The new
standard requires adjustments to be made to conform the associate’s
accounting policies for similar transactions and events under similar
circumstances to those of the parent company when the associate’s financial
statements are used in applying the equity method unless it is impracticable to
determine such adjustments. In addition, financial statements prepared by
foreign associated companies in accordance with either International Financial
Reporting Standards or the accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America tentatively may be used in applying the equity
method if the following items are adjusted so that net income is accounted for
in accordance with Japanese GAAP, unless they are not material: (1)
amortization of goodwill; (2) scheduled amortization of actuarial gain or loss
of pensions that has been recorded in equity through other comprehensive
income; (3) expensing capitalized development costs of R&D; (4) cancellation
of the fair value model accounting for property, plant, and equipment and
investment properties and incorporation of the cost model accounting; and (5)
exclusion of minority interests from net income, if contained in net income.

(10) Long-Lived Assets

(4) Cash Equivalents

(12) Retirement and Pension Plans

Cash and cash equivalents are composed of cash on hand, bank deposits that
are able to be withdrawn on demand, and highly liquid time deposits with an
insignificant risk of changes in value and that have maturities of three months
or less when purchased.

Under the terms of the Company’s retirement plans, employees of the
Company with more than three years of service are generally entitled to
receive lump-sum payments at the time of retirement. The amount of the
retirement benefit is, in general, determined based on the length of service, the
cause of retirement, and the remuneration at the time of retirement.
The Company and certain consolidated domestic subsidiaries have
noncontributory, funded defined benefit pension plans and severance lump-sum
payment plans. The amount of severance indemnities to be paid by the
Company and certain domestic subsidiaries is reduced by the benefits payable
under these pension plans. The Company and certain consolidated overseas
subsidiaries have defined contribution pension plans.
Effective April 1, 2000, the Company adopted a new accounting standard
for retirement benefits and accounted for the liability for retirement benefits
based on the projected benefit obligations and plan assets at the consolidated
balance sheet date. The projected benefit obligations are attributed to periods
on a straight-line basis. Past service costs and actuarial gains and losses are
charged or credited to income as incurred.
In May 2012, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 26, “Accounting
Standard for Retirement Benefits” and ASBJ Guidance No. 25, “Guidance on
Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits,” which replaced the accounting
standard for retirement benefits that had been issued by the Business
Accounting Council in 1998 with an effective date of April 1, 2000, and the
other related practical guidance, and were followed by partial amendments
from time to time through 2009.
(a) Under the revised accounting standard, actuarial gains and losses and past
service costs that are yet to be recognized in profit or loss are recognized
within equity (accumulated other comprehensive income), after adjusting
for tax effects, and any resulting deficit or surplus is recognized as a
liability (liability for retirement benefits) or asset (asset for retirement
benefits).
(b) The revised accounting standard does not change how to recognize
actuarial gains and losses and past service costs in profit or loss. Those
amounts are recognized in profit or loss over a certain period no longer
than the expected average remaining service period of the employees.
However, actuarial gains and losses and past service costs that arose in the
current period and have not yet been recognized in profit or loss are
included in other comprehensive income and actuarial gains and losses, and
past service costs that were recognized in other comprehensive income in
prior periods and then recognized in profit or loss in the current period shall
be treated as reclassification adjustments.
(c) The revised accounting standard also made certain amendments relating to

(5) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined by the average method
for finished products and work in process, and by the moving-average method
principally for other inventories, or net selling value.

(6) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The allowance for doubtful accounts is stated in amounts considered to be
appropriate based on the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries' past credit
loss experience and an evaluation of potential losses in the receivables
outstanding.

(7) Provision for Product Warranties
A provision for product warranties is provided to cover the cost of all services
anticipated to be incurred during the entire warranty period and based on past
experience.

(8) Marketable and Investment Securities
Marketable and investment securities are classified and accounted for,
depending on management’s intent, as follows:
i) Held-to-maturity debt securities, for which there is the positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity are reported at amortized cost.
ii) Available-for-sale securities, which are not classified as the
aforementioned securities, are reported at fair value, with unrealized
gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported as a separate
component of equity.
Nonmarketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost determined by
the moving-average method. For other-than-temporary declines in fair value,
investment securities are reduced to net realizable value by a charge to income.

(9) Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of property, plant,
and equipment of the Company and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries is
computed substantially by the declining-balance method, while the straight-line
method is applied to buildings acquired after April 1, 1998, and lease assets.
Depreciation of consolidated foreign subsidiaries is computed principally by the
straight-line method. The range of useful lives is from 7 to 50 years for
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buildings and structures and from 4 to 11 years for machinery and equipment.
The useful lives for lease assets are the terms of the respective leases.
Under certain conditions, such as exchanges of similar kinds of fixed
assets, sales, and purchases resulting from expropriation and acquisitions made
with the benefit of a government subsidy, Japanese tax laws permit companies
to defer the profit arising from such transactions by reducing the cost of the
assets acquired or by providing a special reserve in the equity section. The
cumulative reduction in acquisition cost of property, plant, and equipment as of
March 31, 2015 and 2014, was ¥6,549 million ($54,452 thousand) and ¥6,551
million, respectively.
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The Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset or asset
group may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized if the
carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the
undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the continued use and
eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted cash flows from the
continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the net selling price at
disposition.

(11) Capitalized Computer Software Costs
Capitalized computer software costs comprise of software costs used in the
Group’s business. Amortization of capitalized computer software costs, which
are included in “Other assets” in investments and other assets, is computed
using the straight-line method over five years, the estimated useful life of the
assets.

the method of attributing expected benefit to periods and relating to the
discount rate and expected future salary increases.
This accounting standard and the guidance for (a) and (b) above are
effective for the end of annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2013, and
for (c) above are effective for the beginning of annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2014, or for the beginning of annual periods beginning on or after
April 1, 2015, subject to certain disclosure in March 2015, both with earlier
application being permitted from the beginning of annual periods beginning on
or after April 1, 2013. However, no retrospective application of this
accounting standard to consolidated financial statements in prior periods is
required.
The Company applied the revised accounting standard and guidance for
retirement benefits for (a) and (b) above, effective March 31, 2014 and (c)
above, effective April 1, 2014.
With respect to (c) above, the Company changed the method of attributing
the expected benefit to periods from a straight-line basis to a benefit formula
basis, the method of determining the discount rate, and recorded the effect of
(c) above as of April 1, 2014, in retained earnings. As a result, liability for
retirement benefits as of April 1, 2014, decreased by ¥676 million ($5,621
thousand), and retained earnings as of April 1, 2014, increased by ¥624 million
($5,190 thousand). This change had an insignificant impact on operating
income and income before income taxes and minority interests for the year
ended March 31, 2015. In addition, this change had an insignificant impact on
net assets per share and basic net income per share for the year ended March
31, 2015.

(13) Asset Retirement Obligations
In March 2008, the ASBJ published ASBJ Statement No. 18 “Accounting
Standard for Asset Retirement Obligations” and ASBJ Guidance No. 21,
“Guidance on Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement Obligations.” Under
this accounting standard, an asset retirement obligation is defined as a legal
obligation imposed either by law or contract that results from the acquisition,
construction, development, and normal operation of a tangible fixed asset, and
is associated with the retirement of such tangible fixed asset. The asset
retirement obligation is recognized as the sum of the discounted cash flows
required for the future asset retirement and is recorded in the period in which
the obligation is incurred if a reasonable estimate can be made. If a reasonable
estimate of the asset retirement obligation cannot be made in the period the
asset retirement obligation is incurred, the liability should be recognized when
a reasonable estimate of asset retirement obligation can be made. Upon initial
recognition of a liability for an asset retirement obligation, an asset retirement
cost is capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related fixed asset
by the amount of the liability. The asset retirement cost is subsequently
allocated to expense through depreciation over the remaining useful life of the
asset. Over time, the liability is accreted to its present value each period. Any
subsequent revisions to the timing or the amount of the original estimate of
undiscounted cash flows are reflected as an increase or a decrease in the
carrying amount of the liability and the capitalized amount of the related asset
retirement cost.

(14) R&D Costs
R&D costs are charged to income as incurred.

(15) Leases
In March 2007, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 13, “Accounting
Standard for Lease Transactions,” which revised the previous accounting
standard for lease transactions.
Under the previous accounting standard, finance leases that were deemed
to transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee were capitalized.
However, other finance leases were permitted to be accounted for as operating
lease transactions if certain “as if capitalized” information was disclosed in the
note to the lessee’s financial statements. The revised accounting standard
requires that all finance lease transactions be capitalized to recognize lease
assets and lease obligations in the consolidated balance sheets.
The Company applied the revised accounting standard effective April 1, 2008.
The Group leases certain machinery and equipment and other assets.

(16) Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income (loss)
included in the consolidated statement of income. The asset and liability
approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are
measured by applying currently enacted tax laws to the temporary differences.

(17) Foreign Currency Transactions
Both short-term and long-term monetary receivables and payables
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the
exchange rates in effect at the consolidated balance sheet date. The foreign
exchange gains and losses from translation are recognized in the consolidated
statement of income to the extent that they are not hedged by forward
exchange contracts.

(18) Foreign Currency Financial Statements
The balance sheet accounts of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are
translated into Japanese yen at the current exchange rate as of the consolidated
balance sheet date, except for equity, which is translated at the historical rate.
Revenue and expense accounts of consolidated foreign subsidiaries are
translated into yen at the average exchange rate. Differences arising from such
translation are shown as “Foreign currency translation adjustments” under
accumulated other comprehensive income in a separate component of equity.

(19) Derivatives and Hedging Activities
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposures to
fluctuations in foreign exchange. Foreign exchange forward contracts are
utilized by the Group to reduce foreign currency exchange risks. The Group
does not enter into derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.
The foreign currency forward contracts employed to hedge foreign
exchange exposures for export sales are measured at fair value and the
unrealized gains/losses are recognized in income. Forward contracts applied
for forecasted (or committed) transactions are also measured at fair value, but
the unrealized gains/losses are deferred until the underlying transactions are
completed.

(20) Per Share Information
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to
common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding for the period, retroactively adjusted for stock splits.
Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated
statement of income are dividends applicable to the respective years, including
dividends to be paid after the end of the year.

(21) Accounting Changes and Error Corrections
In December 2009, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 24, “Accounting
Standard for Accounting Changes and Error Corrections,” and ASBJ Guidance
No. 24, “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes and Error
Corrections.” Accounting treatments under this standard and guidance are as
follows: (1) Changes in Accounting Policies - When a new accounting policy
is applied with revision of accounting standards, the new policy is applied
retrospectively, unless the revised accounting standards include specific
transitional provisions. When the revised accounting standards include
specific transitional provisions, an entity shall comply with the specific
transitional provisions. (2) Changes in Presentations - When the presentation
of financial statements is changed, prior-period financial statements are
reclassified in accordance with the new presentation. (3) Changes in
Accounting Estimates - A change in an accounting estimate is accounted for in
the period of the change if the change affects that period only, and is accounted
for prospectively if the change affects both the period of the change and future
periods. (4) Corrections of Prior-Period Errors - When an error in prior-period
financial statements is discovered, those statements are restated.

3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
No business combinations were recognized in 2015 and 2014.
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4. MARKETABLE AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Marketable and investment securities at March 31, 2015 and 2014, consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

2015

2015

2014

Current:
Government and corporate bonds

¥

4,805 ¥

¥

6,405 ¥

¥

19,450 ¥

39,952

7,230

$

53,252

14,221

$

161,720

─

1,600

Other
Total

$

7,230

13,300

Noncurrent:
Marketable equity securities
Government and corporate bonds

10,330

7,984

85,886

169

169

1,406

Unlisted equity securities
Total

¥

29,949 ¥

$

22,374

249,012

The costs and aggregate fair values of marketable and investment securities at March 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows:
Millions of Yen

March 31, 2015

Cost

Unrealized Gains Unrealized Losses

Fair Value

Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale equity securities

¥

8,447 ¥

11,121 ¥

15,135

Held-to-maturity debt securities

118 ¥

19,450

27

8

15,154

6,548 ¥

353 ¥

14,221

March 31, 2014
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale equity securities

¥

Held-to-maturity debt securities

8,026 ¥
15,214

36

10

15,240

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31, 2015

Cost

Unrealized Gains Unrealized Losses

Fair Value

Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale equity securities
Held-to-maturity debt securities

$

70,235 $
125,838

92,462 $

977 $ 161,720

225

66

125,997

The information for available-for-sale securities, which were sold during the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, is as follows:
Millions of Yen

March 31, 2015

Proceeds

Realized Gains

Realized Losses

Available for sale:
Equity securities

¥

172 ¥

92 ¥

─

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2014

Proceeds

Realized Gains

Realized Losses

Available for sale:
Equity securities

¥

66 ¥

12 ¥

0

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31, 2015

Proceeds

Realized Gains

Realized Losses

Available for sale:
Equity securities

$

No impairment loss on available-for-sale equity securities was recognized in 2015.
The impairment losses on available-for-sale equity securities for the year ended March 31, 2014, were ¥3 million.
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1,434 $

763 $

─

5. INVENTORIES
Inventories at March 31, 2015 and 2014, consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

2015

¥

Finished products

7,005

2015

2014

¥

6,647

$

58,242

Work in process

5,128

6,550

42,635

Raw materials and supplies

5,603

4,427

46,587

Total

¥

17,736

¥

17,624

$

147,464

6. LONG-LIVED ASSETS
The Group reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment as of March 31,
2015. As a result, the Group recognized an impairment loss of ¥862 million
($7,167 thousand) as other expense for the conductive polymer aluminum
solid electrolytic capacitors group. Due to a continuous operating loss at

that unit, the carrying amount of the relevant assets was written down to the
recoverable amount as of March 31, 2015. The recoverable amount of the
assets for business was measured at its value in use and the discount rate used
for computation of the present value of future cash flows was 7%.

The components of the impairment loss on long-lived assets for the year ended March 31, 2015, were as follows:
Use

Assets for business

Location

Suqian, China, etc.

Classification

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

Machinery and equipment

¥

862

$

7,167

Total

¥

862

$

7,167

The Group reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment as of March 31, 2014.
As a result, the Group recognized an impairment loss of ¥1,482 million as other
expense for certain function modules group, the conductive polymer aluminum
solid electrolytic capacitors group, and idle assets. Due to a continuous operating
loss at each unit, the carrying amount of the relevant assets was written down to

the recoverable amount as of March 31, 2014. The recoverable amount of the
assets for business was measured at its value in use and the discount rate used for
computation of the present value of future cash flows was 7%. The recoverable
amount of the idle assets was measured at its estimated net selling value.

The components of the impairment loss on long-lived assets for the year ended March 31, 2014, were as follows:
Use

Assets for business

Idle assets

Location

Kyoto Prefecture

Classification

Buildings and structures

Millions of Yen

¥

468

Machinery and equipment

225

Others

163

Suzhou, China

Buildings and structures

530

Nagano Prefecture

Machinery and equipment

59

Kyoto Prefecture

Machinery and equipment

3

Others
Total

34
¥

1,482
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7. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Short-term borrowings at March 31, 2015 and 2014, consisted of notes to banks and bank overdrafts. The weighted-average annual interest rate applicable to
the short-term borrowings at March 31, 2015 and 2014, were 0.3% and 0.4%, respectively.
Short-term borrowings and long-term debt at March 31, 2015 and 2014, consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

2015

Unsecured loans from banks, 0.3% to 0.4%, due 2016
Obligations under finance leases
Total
Less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion

¥

¥

3,900
1,630

3,034
1,836)
(
1,198 ¥

(
¥

2015

2014

1,800
1,234

5,530
3,909)
1,621

$

14,966
10,262
(

$

25,228
15,266)
9,962

Annual maturities of long-term debt as of March 31, 2015, for the next five years and thereafter were as follows:

Year Ending March 31

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

2017

¥

1,836
748

2018

128

1,068

2019

124

1,027

104
94
3,034

865
786
25,228

2016

2020
2021 and thereafter
Total
The Company has entered into loan commitment agreements amounting to
¥10,500 million ($87,304 thousand) and ¥17,500 million with four banks as
of March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Under these loan commitment

¥

$

15,266
6,216

$

agreements, ¥1,300 million ($10,809 thousand) and ¥900 million have been
executed as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

8. RETIREMENT AND PENSION PLANS
Under the pension plans, employees of the Company with more than three
years of service are generally entitled to receive lump-sum payments at the
time of retirement. Employees terminating their employment are, in most
circumstances, entitled to pension payments based on their average pay

during their employment, length of service, and certain other factors.
The defined benefit obligations of certain subsidiaries are calculated
using a simplified method, which is permitted for small-size companies in
accordance with the accounting standard for retirement benefits.

(1) The changes in defined benefit obligation for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows (excluding the above simplified method):
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

2015

Balance at beginning of year (as previously reported)
Cumulative effect of accounting change

¥
(

Balance at beginning of year (as restated)
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial losses
Benefits paid
Balance at end of year
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(
¥

8,635 ¥
676)

2015

2014

8,519

7,959
519

─
8,519
476

63
276
349)
(
8,468 ¥

94
29
483)
8,635

$
(

71,793
5,621)
66,172
4,319

(
$

528
2,294
2,909)
70,404

(2) The changes in plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows (excluding the above simplified method):
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

2015

Balance at beginning of year
Expected return on plan assets

¥

¥

4,786
72

13

Actuarial gains
Contributions from the employer
Benefits paid
Balance at end of year

(

$

43,137
647

104
6,870

20

826
336)
(
5,769 ¥

¥

2015

2014

5,188
78

829
519)
5,188

(
$

2,790)
47,968

(3) The changes in defined benefit obligation calculated using a simplified method for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

2015

Balance at beginning of year
Benefit costs
Benefits paid
Contributions from the employer
Balance at end of year

¥
(
(

¥

149
30

6)
(
25)
(
148 ¥

¥

2015

2014

149
30

6)
24)
149

$

1,237
249
(
(

$

46)

208)
1,232

(4) Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the balances of defined benefit obligation and plan assets was as follows
(including the above simplified method):
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

2015

Funded defined benefit obligation
Plan assets
Unfunded defined benefit obligation
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation

¥
(

¥

2015

2014

8,590 ¥
6,067)
(

8,745
5,461)

2,523
324
2,847

3,284
312
3,596

¥

$
(

2015

¥
¥

20,975
2,693
23,668

$

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

Liability for retirement benefits
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation

2015

2014

2,847 ¥
2,847 ¥

71,421
50,446)

3,596
3,596

$
$

23,668
23,668

(5) The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

2015

Service cost
Interest cost

¥

519
63
(

Expected return on plan assets
Recognized actuarial losses
Benefit costs calculated using a simplified method
Net periodic benefit costs

¥

2015

2014

¥

78)
263
30
797

476
94
(

¥

$
(

72)
9
30
537

4,319
528

$

647)
2,190
249
6,639
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(6) Plan assets
a. Components of plan assets
Plan assets as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, consisted of the following:

2015

Life insurance company general accounts
Debt investments
Equity investments
Others
Total

2014

83.8%
15.8

84.2%
15.4

0.3
0.1
100.0%

0.3
0.1
100.0%

b. Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets
The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering the long-term rates of return, which are expected currently and in the future from
the various components of the plan assets.

(7) Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, were set forth as follows:

2015

Discount rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets
The Company uses the compensation increase index in accordance with the
Company’s human resources and wage policy to determine the
compensation increase index for the calculation of defined benefit

0.8%
1.5%

2014

1.1%
1.5%

obligation. The Company uses the indexes as of November 30, 2014 and
2013 for the calculation as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

9. EQUITY
Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act of Japan (the
“Companies Act”). The significant provisions in the Companies Act that affect
financial and accounting matters are summarized below:
a. Dividends
Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during
the fiscal year in addition to the year-end dividend upon resolution at the
shareholders' meeting. For companies that meet certain criteria, such as (1)
having the board of directors; (2) having independent auditors; (3) having an
audit and supervisory board; and (4) the term of service of the directors is
prescribed as one year rather than two years of normal term by its articles of
incorporation, the board of directors may declare dividends (except for
dividends in kind) at any time during the fiscal year if the Company has
prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. However, the Company cannot
do so because it does not meet all the above criteria.
The Companies Act permits companies to distribute dividends in kind
(noncash assets) to shareholders subject to a certain limitation and additional
requirements.
Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon
resolution by the board of directors if the articles of incorporation of the
Company so stipulate. The Companies Act provides certain limitations on
the amounts available for dividends or the purchase of treasury stock. The
limitation is defined as the amount available for distribution to the
shareholders, but the amount of net assets after dividends must be
maintained at no less than ¥3 million.
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b. Increases/Decreases and Transfer of Common Stock, Reserve, and
Surplus
The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must
be appropriated as a legal reserve (a component of retained earnings) or as
additional paid-in capital (a component of capital surplus) depending on the
equity account charged upon the payment of such dividends until the
aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25%
of the common stock. Under the Companies Act, the total amount of
additional paid-in capital and legal reserve may be reversed without
limitation.
The Companies Act also provides that common stock, legal reserve,
additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus, and retained earnings can be
transferred among the accounts within equity under certain conditions upon
resolution of the shareholders.
c. Treasury Stock and Treasury Stock Acquisition Rights
The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock
and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the board of directors.
The amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount available
for distribution to the shareholders, which is determined by a specific
formula.
Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are now presented as
a separate component of equity.
The Companies Act also provides that companies can purchase both
treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury stock. Such treasury stock
acquisition rights are presented as a separate component of equity or
deducted directly from stock acquisition rights.

10. INCOME TAXES
The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to Japanese national
and local income taxes which, in the aggregate, resulted in a normal effective
statutory tax rate of approximately 35.5% for the year ended March 31, 2015

and 38.0% for the year ended March 31, 2014. Consolidated foreign
subsidiaries are subject to income taxes in the countries in which they operate.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards, which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2015 and 2014, are
as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

2015

Deferred tax assets:
Liability for retirement benefits

¥

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Allowance for accrued bonuses
Expenses on environmental protection measures
Property, plant, and equipment
Tax loss carryforwards
Other
Less valuation allowance

(

Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities
Other
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax liabilities

¥

2015

2014

902 ¥
122
304
754
2,667
4,049
775
8,629)
(
944
3,491
193
3,684
2,740 ¥

1,273
144
320
811
2,999
5,118
1,088
10,167)
1,586
2,146
86
2,232
646

7,500
1,014
2,524
6,267
22,172
33,669

$

6,441

(

$

71,743)
7,844
29,023
1,606
30,629
22,785

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates and the actual effective tax rates reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, is as follows:

Normal effective statutory tax rate
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes
Per capital inhabitant tax
Indirect foreign tax credit
Difference between Japan and foreign tax rate
Changes in valuation allowance
Equity in losses of associated company
Other, net
Actual effective tax rate

2015

2014

35.5%
( 0.9)
0.6
( 1.8)
( 3.7)
10.4
0.1
3.1
43.3%

38.0%
( 1.6)
0.6
( 2.3)
( 0.6)
(11.4)
0.5
0.3
23.5%

New tax reform laws enacted in 2015 in Japan changed the normal effective statutory tax rate for the fiscal year beginning on or after April 1, 2015, to approximately
33.0% and for the fiscal year beginning on or after April 1, 2016, to approximately 32.2%. The effect of this change was not significant.

Integrated Report 2015

50

11. SELLING, GENERAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Selling, general, and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, consisted of
the following:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

2015

Freight charges
Advertising

¥

Employees' salary and bonuses
Net periodic retirement benefit costs
Provision for bonuses
R&D expenses
Provision for product warranties
Depreciation and amortization
Others
Total

¥

2,334 ¥
227
3,946
243
218
1,091
290
235
4,584
13,168 ¥

2015

2014

2,123
215
3,676
112
210
1,055
275
216
3,940
11,822

$

$

19,406
1,889
32,809
2,021
1,815
9,070
2,408
1,951
38,119
109,488

12. R&D COSTS
R&D costs charged to income were ¥3,198 million ($26,589 thousand) and ¥3,105 million for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
(1) Group Policy for Financial Instruments
The Group manages its funds through low-risk financial assets and uses
borrowings for financing.
Derivatives are used, not for speculative purposes, but to hedge the
exchange risk of the trade receivables in foreign currency.
(2) Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments, and
Risk Management for Financial Instruments
Trade receivables, such as trade notes and trade accounts, are exposed to
customer credit risk. The Group, pursuant to its credit management rule,
manages customers' credit by monitoring the collection terms and balances
of trade receivables and by updating customer credit conditions annually.
Receivables in foreign currencies are exposed to the market risk of
fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates.
The Group, according to its securities management rule, invests only in
high-rated bonds. Thus, the Group believes that the held-to-maturity
securities included in marketable and investment securities are exposed to
little credit risk.
Equity securities held for business relation purposes, included in
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investment securities, are exposed to the risk of market fluctuations. The
Group regularly reviews balances of investment equity securities according
to the financial condition of the issuers.
Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries are regularly monitored for
changes in the credit condition of such affiliated companies.
Most payment terms of payables, such as trade notes and trade
accounts, are less than one year. Although trade payables and borrowings
are exposed to liquidity risk, the Group manages the liquidity risk by
appropriately preparing monthly cash flow projections.
The Group deals and manages derivative transactions in accordance
with its derivatives management rule. To minimize credit risk associated
with the derivatives transactions, the Group carries out derivative
transactions only with highly rated financial institutions.
(3) Fair Values of Financial Instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted prices in active
markets. If a quoted price is not available, other rational valuation
techniques are used instead.

(a) Fair value of financial instruments
Millions of Yen
Carrying
Amount

March 31, 2015
Cash and cash equivalents

¥

Fair Value

20,897

¥

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Unrealized Gain/
Loss

20,897

¥

—

Carrying
Amount

$

Fair Value

173,754

$

173,754

Unrealized Gain/
Loss

$

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

31,762

31,762

—

264,081

264,081

—

Held-to-maturity securities

15,135

15,154

19

125,838

125,997

159

Available-for-sale equity securities

19,450

19,450

—

161,720

161,720

—

642

929

287

5,340

7,726

2,386

Time deposits
Receivables (net)
Marketable and investment securities:

Investment in associated company

1,398

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries
(

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Short-term borrowings

¥

1,253

89,139 ¥

¥

1,800

¥

20,103

—

1,206)
10,420

89,445

¥

306

$

¥

1,800

¥

—

$

14,966

¥

20,103

¥

—

$

167,155

18,303

Payables
Total

(

1,253

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries (net)
Total

11,626

145)

18,303

—

10,420

741,153 $

—

743,698

$

2,545

$

14,966

$

—

$

167,155

$

—

152,189

152,189

—

Millions of Yen
Carrying
Amount

March 31, 2014
Cash and cash equivalents

¥

18,819

Time deposits

Unrealized Gain/
Loss

Fair Value

¥

18,819

¥

—

2,130

2,130

—

31,254

31,254

—

Held-to-maturity securities

15,213

15,240

27

Available-for-sale equity securities

14,221

14,221

—

612

939

327

Receivables (net)
Marketable and investment securities:

Investment in associated company
Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries

1,458
(

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries (net)
Total
Short-term borrowings

1,278
¥
¥

Current portion of long-term debt

1,278

83,527

¥

900

¥

3,000

Payables
Total

180)

22,019

¥

900

¥

3,000

18,119
¥

—

83,881

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Time Deposits, and Receivables
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, and
receivables approximate fair value because of their short maturities.
Marketable and Investment Securities
The fair values of marketable and investment securities are measured at the
quoted market price of the stock exchange for the equity instruments, and at
the quoted price obtained from the financial institution for certain debt
instruments. Fair value information for the marketable and investment
securities by classification is included in Note 4.

22,019

—
—

18,119
¥

354

—
¥

—

Advances to Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
The fair values of advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries based on floating
interest rates are determined by book values because their market value
approximates book value.
Payables, Short-Term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-Term
Debt
The carrying values of payables, short-term borrowings, and current portion of
long-term debt approximate fair value because of their short maturities.

Investments in Associated Company
The fair value of investments in an associated company is measured at the
quoted market price of the stock exchange for the equity instruments.
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(b) The carrying amount of financial instruments whose fair values cannot be reliably determined is as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

2015

¥

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market

2015

2014

2,449

¥

$

2,457

20,363

(4) Maturity Analysis for Financial Assets and Securities with Contractual Maturities
Millions of Yen

March 31, 2015
Cash and cash equivalents

Due after
One Year
through
Five Years

Due in
One Year
or Less

¥ 20,897

¥

—

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Due after
Five Years
through
10 Years

¥

—

¥

Due after
One Year
through
Five Years

Due in
One Year
or Less

Due after
10 Years

—

$ 173,754

$

Due after
Five Years
through
10 Years

—

$

Due after
10 Years

—

$

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

31,762

—

—

—

264,081

—

—

—

Held-to-maturity securities

4,805

10,330

—

—

39,952

85,886

—

—

Negotiable certificates of deposit

1,600

—

—

—

13,300

—

—

—

—

525

374

499

—

4,367

3,111

4,148

¥ 59,064

¥ 10,855

499

$ 491,087

$ 90,253

Due in
One Year
or Less

Due after
One Year
through
Five Years

Time deposits
Receivables (net)
Marketable and investment securities:

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries
Total

¥

374

¥

$

3,111

$

4,148

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2014
Cash and cash equivalents

¥ 18,819

Time deposits
Receivables (net)

¥

—

Due after
Five Years
through
10 Years

¥

—

Due after
10 Years

¥

—

2,130

—

—

—

31,254

—

—

—

7,230

7,984

—

—

—

491

407

560

Marketable and investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities
Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries
Total

¥ 59,433

¥

8,475

¥

407

¥

560

Please see Note 7 for annual maturities of long-term debt and obligations under finance leases.

14. DERIVATIVES
As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no outstanding contract amounts of derivatives.

15. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The components of other comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

2015

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities:
Gains arising during the year

53

¥

Recycling

(

Amount before income tax effect
Income tax effect
Total

(

2015

2014

4,899 ¥
92)

3,113
—

$

3,113
1,052)
2,061

$

39,967
11,170)
28,797

(

40,730
763)

¥

4,807
1,344) (
3,463 ¥

Foreign currency translation adjustments Adjustments arising during the year
Total

¥
¥

3,260 ¥
3,260 ¥

3,789
3,789

$
$

27,107
27,107

Share of other comprehensive income in associate Gains arising during the year
Total

¥
¥

54 ¥
54 ¥

127
127

$
$

450
450

Total other comprehensive income

¥

5,977

$

56,354
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6,777

¥

(

16. NET INCOME PER SHARE

Year Ended March 31, 2015:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of Shares

Net Income

Weighted-Average
Shares

Yen

U.S. Dollars
EPS

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”)
¥

Net income available to common shareholders

Year Ended March 31, 2014:

2,258

71,341

¥

31.65

$

Millions of Yen

Thousands of Shares

Yen

Net Income

Weighted-Average
Shares

EPS

0.26

Basic EPS
Net income available to common shareholders

¥

3,183

71,439

¥

44.56

Diluted net income per share is not disclosed because no dilutive securities were outstanding for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014.

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
Appropriation of Retained Earnings
On May 12, 2015, the Company’s board of directors approved a resolution,
which is subject to approval at the general meeting of shareholders, outlining a
plan to pay cash dividends.
The resolution of cash dividends is as follows:

Millions
of Yen

¥

Year-end cash dividends, ¥9 ($0.07) per share

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

631

$

5,247

18. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Under ASBJ Statement No. 17, “Accounting Standard for Segment Information
Disclosures,” and issued ASBJ Guidance No. 20, “Guidance on Accounting
Standard for Segment Information Disclosures,” an entity is required to report
financial and descriptive information about its reportable segments. Reportable
segments are operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that
meet specified criteria. Operating segments are components of an entity about

which separate financial information is available and such information is
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to
allocate resources and in assessing performance. Generally, segment
information is required to be reported on the same basis as is used internally
for evaluating operating segment performance and deciding how to allocate
resources to operating segments.

(1) Description of Reportable Segments
The Group’s main operations are manufacturing and distributing capacitors
and related products. The Group consists of business segments based on
sales offices and manufacturing bases. Since the factors of each sales office
and manufacturing base, such as the economic characteristics, the contents

of the products and services, and the manufacturing or marketing processes
of products, are similar, the Group’s reportable segment is a single segment
“manufacturing and distributing capacitors and related products.”
Therefore, the Group has omitted segment information.

(2) Information about Products and Services
Millions of Yen

2015

Capacitors for
Electronics

Sales to external customers

¥

72,814

Capacitors for
Electric Apparatus
and Power
Utilities, and
Capacitor Applied
Systems

¥

12,680

Circuit Products

¥

21,273

Other

¥

527

Total

¥

107,294

Millions of Yen

2014

Capacitors for
Electronics

Sales to external customers

¥

69,063

Capacitors for
Electric Apparatus
and Power
Utilities, and
Capacitor Applied
Systems

¥

12,606

Circuit Products

¥

22,578

Other

¥

443

Total

¥

104,690

$

892,112

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2015

Capacitors for
Electronics

Sales to external customers

$

605,422

Capacitors for
Electric Apparatus
and Power
Utilities, and
Capacitor Applied
Systems

$

105,433

Circuit Products

$

176,879

Other

$ 4,378

Total
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(3) Information by Geographical Area
(a) Sales
Millions of Yen

2015
Japan

		 ¥

41,254

USA

¥

Asia

6,908

¥

51,117

Other

¥

Total

8,015

¥

107,294

Millions of Yen

2014
Japan

		 ¥

43,030

USA

¥

Asia

6,793

¥

47,737

Other

¥

Total

7,130

¥

104,690

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2015
Japan

$

343,015

USA

$

Asia

57,437

$

425,015

Other

$

Total

66,645 $

892,112

(b) Property, plant, and equipment
Millions of Yen

2015
Japan

		 ¥

16,805

USA

¥

Asia

435

¥

8,937

Other

¥

Total

24

¥

26,201

Millions of Yen

2014
Japan

		 ¥

17,829

USA

¥

Asia

378

¥

9,630

Other

¥

Total

31

¥

27,868

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2015
Japan

		 $

139,728

USA

$

3,616

Asia

$

74,313

Total

Other

$

199

$

217,856

19. INVESTIGATION BY THE JAPAN FAIR TRADE COMMISSION ETC.
On June 24, 2014, the Company was investigated by the Japan Fair Trade
Commission on suspicion of having violated the antitrust law in trading of
capacitors. The Group is being investigated by authorities of United States,
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Europe, etc., in trading of capacitor. The Company is fully cooperating with
the Japan Fair Trade Commission. This investigation is ongoing; therefore, the
final conclusion might have consequences on our business results.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Subsidiaries

As of July 1, 2015

Domestic

Overseas

NICHICON HI-TECH FOIL CORPORATION

NICHICON (AMERICA) CORP.

8224-1, Yashiro, Ohmachi-shi, Nagano Pref., 398-0003 Japan
TEL.81-261-21-3200 FAX.81-261-21-3206
Capital stock: 80 million yen
Product line: Electrode foil for aluminum electrolytic capacitors
ISO 9001 & ISO 14001 certified

NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION
3-1, Yagura 2-chome, Kusatsu-shi, Shiga Pref., 525-0053 Japan
TEL.81-77-563-1181 FAX.81-77-563-1208
Capital stock: 80 million yen
Product line: Capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities, plastic film
capacitors, capacitor applied system and equipment
ISO 9001 & ISO 14001 certified

NICHICON (KAMEOKA) CORPORATION
15-1, 2-chome, Kitakose-cho, Kameoka-shi, Kyoto Pref., 621-0811 Japan
TEL.81-771-22-5541 FAX.81-771-29-2010
Capital stock: 80 million yen
Product line: Function modules, positive thermistors
ISO 9001 & ISO 14001 certified

NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION
1-11-2 Shimoyoro, Ohno-shi, Fukui Pref., 912-0095 Japan
TEL.81-779-66-0333 FAX.81-779-66-0312
Capital stock: 80 million yen
Product line: Aluminum electrolytic capacitors, conductive polymer aluminum
solid electrolytic capacitors, electric double layer capacitors
ISO 9001, ISO/TS 16949 & ISO 14001 certified

NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION
8-17-1, Kubo, Iwate-machi Iwate-gun, Iwate Pref., 028-4305 Japan
TEL.81-195-62-5311 FAX.81-195-62-3400
Capital stock: 100 million yen
Product line: Aluminum electrolytic capacitors (chip type)
ISO 9001, ISO/TS 16949 & ISO 14001 certified

NICHICON (WAKASA) CORPORATION
35-1-1 Tada, Obama-shi, Fukui Pref., 917-0026 Japan
TEL.81-770-56-2111 FAX.81-770-56-2116
Capital stock: 84 million yen
Product line: Various kinds of power supplies
ISO 9001 & ISO 14001 certified

TORISHIMA ELECTRIC WORKS LTD.
3-1, Yagura 2-chome, Kusatsu-shi, Shiga Pref., 525-0053 Japan
TEL.81-77-562-0891 FAX.81-77-562-0809
Capital stock: 30 million yen
Product and business line: Various kinds of power transformers and reactors
ISO 9001 certified

NIPPON LINIAX CO., LTD.

NICHICON (AUSTRIA) GmbH

Businesspark Marximum, Modecenterstrasse 17, Unit 2-7-A, 1110 Vienna, Austria
TEL.43-1-706-7932 FAX.43-1-706-7933
Capital stock: 1 million EUR
Business line: Sales of various kinds of capacitors

NICHICON (HONG KONG) LTD.

Unit 308, Harbour Centre Tower 1, 1 Hok Cheung Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
TEL.852-2363-4331 FAX.852-2764-1867
Capital stock: 5 million HK$
Business line: Sales of various kinds of capacitors

NICHICON (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

20 Jalan Afifi, #06-08, Certis CISCO Centre II, Singapore 409179
TEL.65-6481-5641 FAX.65-6481-6485
Capital stock: 8 million SP$
Business line: Sales of various kinds of capacitors

NICHICON (TAIWAN) CO., LTD.

16F-12, No.6, Sec.4, Hsin-Yi Rd., Taipei, Taiwan
TEL.886-2-2708-0200 FAX.886-2-2708-0959
Capital stock: 30 million NT$
Business line: Sales of various kinds of capacitors

NICHICON (THAILAND) CO., LTD.

1 Empire Tower, 15th Floor, Unit 1506, River Wing West, South Sathorn Road,
Yannawa, Sathorn, Bangkok 10120 Thailand
TEL.66-2-670-0150 FAX.66-2-670-0153
Capital stock: 20 million BAHT
Business line: Sales of various kinds of capacitors

NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
Room 1206, Aetna Tower, 107 Zunyi Road, Shanghai, China 200051
TEL.86-21-6237-5538 FAX.86-21-6237-5537
Capital stock: 0.5 million US$
Business line: Sales of various kinds of capacitors

NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD.

Room A, 16/F, KK100 No.5016, Shen Nan Road East, Luo Hu District, Shenzhen,
China 518001
TEL.86-755-2294-1800 FAX.86-755-8294-5716
Capital stock: 0.3 million US$
Business line: Sales of various kinds of capacitors

NICHICON (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD.

No.4 Jalan P/10, Kawasan Perusahaan Bangi, 43650 Bandar Baru Bangi, Selangor
Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
TEL.60-3-8925-0678 FAX.60-3-8925-0858
Capital stock: 63 million M$
Business line: Production of aluminum electrolytic capacitors (chip type, miniature
type and large can type), sales of various kinds of capacitors
ISO 9001, ISO/TS 16949 & ISO 14001 certified

NICHICON ELECTRONICS (WUXI) CO., LTD.

Block 51-B, Wuxi National High & New Technology Industrial Development Zone,
Wuxi, Jiangsu, China 214028
TEL.86-510-8521-8222 FAX.86-510-8522-1170
Capital stock: 75 million US$
Business line: Production of aluminum electrolytic capacitors and various kinds of
power supplies, sales of various kinds of capacitors
ISO 9001, ISO/TS 16949 & ISO 14001 certified

WUXI NICHICON ELECTRONICS R&D CENTER CO., LTD.

3-2, Sugahara-cho, Kita-ku, Osaka, 530-0046 Japan
TEL.81-6-6362-6470 FAX.81-6-6362-6473
Capital stock: 15 million yen
Product and business line: Pressure sensors, various kinds of instruments
ISO 9001 certified

Block 51-B, Wuxi National High & New Technology Industrial Development Zone,
Wuxi, Jiangsu, China 214028
TEL.86-510-8521-8222 FAX.86-510-8522-1170
Capital stock: 5 million RMB
Business line: Development & design for various kinds of power supplies and
aluminum electrolytic capacitors
ISO 9001 certified (Scope of certification: The design and development of switching
power supplies)

YUTAKA ELECTRIC MFG. CO., LTD.

NICHICON ELECTRONICS (SUQIAN) CO., LTD.

25-5, 7-chome, nishigotanda, shinagawa-ku, Tokyo, 141-0031 Japan
TEL.81-3-5436-2771 FAX.81-3-5436-2785
Capital stock: 330 million yen
Product and Business line : Power supply equipment
ISO 9001 & ISO 14001 certified
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927 East State Parkway, Schaumburg, Illinois 60173, U.S.A.
TEL.1-847-843-7500 FAX.1-847-843-2798
Capital stock: 3 million US$
Business line: Sales of various kinds of capacitors
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NO.18, Yangmingshan Avenue, Suzhou Suqian Industrial Park,Suqian, China 223800
TEL.86-527-8286-8855 FAX.86-527-8286-8966
Capital stock: 33 million US$
Business line: Production and sales of conductive polymer aluminum solid electrolytic
capacitors
ISO 9001 certified

Corporate Data

As of June 26, 2015

Board of Directors

Offices

Chairman & CEO

Ippei Takeda

President & COO

Shigeo Yoshida

Director

Hitoshi Chikano

TOKYO SALES OFFICE

5-5, 2-Chome, Hamamatsu-cho, Minato-ku,
Tokyo, 105-0013 Japan
TEL.81-3-5473-5611 FAX.81-3-5473-5651

NAGOYA SALES OFFICE

18F Nishiki-Park Bldg. 4-3, Nishiki 2-chome,
Naka-ku, Nagoya, 460-0003 Japan
TEL.81-52-223-5581 FAX.81-52-220-1839

WEST JAPAN SALES
OFFICE

Karasumadori Oike-agaru, Nakagyo-ku, Kyoto,
604-0845 Japan
TEL.81-75-241-5370 FAX.81-75-231-8467

Sales Branches

Iwate, Sendai, Koriyama, Kitakantou,
Okayama, Fukuoka

Akihiro Yano
Atsushi Abe (External Director)
Kazumi Matsushige (External Director)
Yasuhisa Katsuta (External Director)
Standing Corporate
Auditor

Keiji Nishihata

Corporate Auditor

Hideki Onishi (External)

Kazunari Yamamoto

Masahiro Morise (External)

Date of
Establishment

August 1, 1950

Capital Stock

14,286 million yen (As of March 31, 2015)

Number of
Employees

4,809 (Consolidated) (As of March 31, 2015)

Head Office

Karasumadori Oike-agaru, Nakagyo-ku, Kyoto,
604-0845 Japan
TEL.81-75-231-8461 FAX.81-75-256-4158

POWER SUPPLY CENTER 5-5, 2-chome, Hamamatsu-cho, Minato-ku,
Tokyo, 105-0013 Japan
TEL.81-3-3432-6561 FAX.81-3-3437-5769
Development & design for various types of
power supplies
ISO 9001 certified

Investor Information
Authorized number of
shares

137,000,000 shares

Major Stockholders As of March 31, 2015
Number of
shares held
(thousand)

Percentage of
shares held
(%)

Bank of Kyoto, Ltd.

3,568

5.1

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account)

2,950

4.2

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

2,690

3.8

Nippon Life Insurance Company

2,670

3.8

NICHICON suppliers’ stock ownership program

2,654

3.8

Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust account)

2,221

3.2

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

2,200

3.1

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.

2,000

2.9

Nobuko Hirai

1,915

2.7

CBNY-GOVERMENT OF NORWAY

1,619

2.3

Major stockholders

Issued number of shares

70,122,211shares
(excluding 7,877,789 shares of treasury stock)

Number of shareholders

8,479

Listings

First section, Tokyo Stock Exchange

Notes : 1) The Company holds7,877 thousand shares of its own stock, but is excluded from the above
list of major shareholders.
2) The shareholding ratio is calculated by subtracting treasury stock. As shares she held have yet
to be transferred, she remains as a shareholder of record.
3) Shown with less than 1,000 shares truncated.
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